
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday 14 November 2022. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 22 November 2022 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Helen Crawford, Chairman of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Ben Green (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor John Dawson, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor 
Susan Sandall, Councillor Ian Stokes, Councillor Paul Wood and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Public Speaking 
 

The Council welcomes engagement from members of the public. To speak at this 
meeting please register no later than 24 hours prior to the date of the meeting via 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Disclosure of interests 
 

 

4.   Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 12) 

5.   Updates from previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on actions agreed at the meeting held on 27 
September 2022. 
 

(Page 13) 

6.   Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet 
Members or the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 
7.   Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/24 

 

This report is for Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review the consultation responses 
and comment on the proposed Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 
2023/24, as well as proposals made in relation to the discount for care 
leavers, discount for Special Constables and Discretionary Hardship Fund. 
 

(Pages 15 - 27) 

8.   Progress Update on the new South Kesteven Economic Development 
Strategy 2023 – 2028 
 

The purpose of this report is to share a first draft of the emerging South 
Kesteven Economic Development Strategy (2023 – 2028) and provide 
recent data relating to key economic drivers for the District. 
 

(Pages 29 - 49) 

9.   Finance Update Report: April to October 2022 
 

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s forecast 2022/23 

financial position as at the end of October 2022. The report covers the 

following areas:                                       
 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account 

•  

(Pages 51 - 77) 

10.   Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022-23 Mid-Year Report 
 

This Mid-Year update report outlines South Kesteven District Councils 
performance against the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) for the year of 2022/23. 
 

(Pages 79 - 99) 

11.   Telephony System Calls Handling Performance 
 

This is an update for Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee regarding the current position 
for call handling and customer contact within the Customer Service team, 
high contact service areas.   
 

(Pages 101 - 107) 

12.   Update on Changing Places Toilet Facilities Project 
 

To provide the Committee an update regarding the Changing Places 
Toilets facilities project across the district. 
 

(Pages 109 - 113) 

13.   Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022 – 2023. 
 

(Pages 115 - 116) 

14.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstance decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday, 27 September 2022, 2.00 pm 

 

 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Helen Crawford (Chairman) 
Councillor Ben Green (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor John Dawson 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
 
Other Members in attendance 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
 

 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
 
Officers in attendance  
 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Assistant Director of Growth and Culture) 
Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer) 
Alison Hall-Wright (Assistant Director of Finance) 
Claire Moses (Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service) 
Gary Andrew (IT Services Manager) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Officer) 

 

 

 
23. Public Speaking 

 
There were no comments from members of the public. 

 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

24. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew. 
 

25. Disclosure of interests 
 

There were none. 
 

26. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2022 
 

A Member asked when the public consultation would start on the localised Council 
Tax Scheme for 2022/23.  The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services 
confirmed that the consultation opened on 26 September 2022 and will close on 21 
October 2022. 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record. 

 
27. Updates from previous meeting 

 
The Committee noted the action notes from the meeting held on 19 July 2022. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that some Members of the Committee took part in a tour 
of Grantham and found it most informative and exciting to think what the future 
could be like. 
 
The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service confirmed that the call-
handling information was being reviewed.  Performance clinics were to meet on a 
weekly basis from next month.  The Officer asked that when Members were notified 
of specific incidents of calls not being answered, that they forward the details to the 
Officer who will investigate. 

 
A Member stated that a direct line should be answered by a staff member and not 
go to voicemail. 
 
Recent data on the calls answered was requested and a specific incident was 
recalled where a Member tried to contact a department over a 40 minute period.  
This was confirmed to be on the day that there was a county-wide internet outage 
which the Council was powerless to rectify, although Councillors were able to 
contact Members Services for all their enquiries. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer added that Members were soon to be notified of a direct 
method for contacting Officers. 

 
The Leader of the Council added that the residents rightly expected a quality 
standard of service.  It was requested that data information on calls be brought 
before the next meeting and should include the number of calls received and call 
failures logged. 

4



 
 

 
ACTION 1: 
 
That the Committee receive call data as requested at the 22 November 
meeting. 

 
28. Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members 

or the Head of Paid Service 
 

There were none. 
 

29. Draft ICT Strategy 2022-2025 
 

The Council’s Corporate Plan (2020 – 2023) identified High Performing Council as 
a key priority. To support the achievement of this priority the Council produced an 
updated ICT Strategy which provided details regarding the strategic direction of ICT 
which sought to maximise functionality, value for money and quality customer 
experience.  
 
The previous strategy covered the period 2017 to 2019 and set out a direction of 
travel towards cloud-based solutions which this strategy builds on.  Presented by 
the Leader of the Council, the Strategy focused on two key principles which aimed 
to create an improved ICT experience for all users. The key principles were:  

 
The ICT platform –aiming to ensure that end-to-end interactions are as simple and 
streamlined as possible to create an improved customer experience.  
 
A digital workforce –focused on enabling our employees to have access to the right 
tools to do their job and be confident in maximising the use and benefits of 
technology in daily work.  
 
The ICT platform and digital workforce principles complemented each other in the 
delivery of a successful, transformational ICT service. The ICT platform principle 
aimed to modernise our processes and systems and the digital workforce principle 
ensured employees have the relevant skills and tools to make the best use of the 
technologies available. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• Had the Council placed enough emphasis on cyber security, stability, back-up 
facilities and resilience? 

 

• There was no mention of telephony in the report.  Why was this? 
 

 

• A query was raised within the ‘strategic principles’ part of the report in 
reference to the use of ‘modular common components’. 

 

5



 
 

The   Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that Members had received £150,000 
in government funding and an action plan to show the improvements to the 
Council’s security due to be made was put together which can be brought to the 
November meeting. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance explained that the telephony system was part of 
the Customer Experience strategy not ICT. 
 
The IT Services Manager informed the Committee that the Council was using a 
software platform also used by over 30 other Councils to share applications and 
ideas – an open culture, whereas expensive ‘off-the-shelf’ software may have been 
relied upon in the past.  The Officer also informed Members that cloud contracts 
were Government-approved and had to be run from within the United Kingdom by 
law.  There were back-up plans that were built into the contract. 
 
ACTION 2: 
 
The Committee was to receive details of the action plan for the ICT Strategy 
when it was developed.  
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Committee:  
 
a) Had reviewed and provided feedback on the draft ICT Strategy prior to 

its formal approval. 
 

30. Update on St Martin's Park Demolition Works 
 

The Leader of the Council presented the report on St Martin’s Park Demolition 
Works. 
 
In March 2019 the Council purchased land at Barnack Road, Stamford, which was 
purchased by the Council as being strategically important to the Council’s growth 
ambitions in Stamford. The development was also included in the Corporate Plan 
2020-2023 with a key action for its delivery under the corporate priority of ‘Growth 
and Our Economy’. The land holdings, known as St Martin's Park, extend to 
approximately 14 hectares (36 acres).  
 
The sites had been marketed for a mixed-use development including commercial, 
residential and retirement units along with associated public open space, car 
parking, retail and infrastructure. These uses were subject to an outline planning 
consent, approved by the Local Planning Authority with a completed Section 106 
agreement which included demolition of the Cummins factory and associated 
buildings. 
 

6



 
 

At full Council on 27 January 2022 the Council approved the budget of £1.303m in 
order to provide funding for the demolition of the buildings at St.Martin’s Park 
Stamford and the demolition of the buildings and delegated authority to the Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council and S151 Officer to enter 
into a contract with GF Tomlinson to undertake the works within the allocated 
budget.  

 
It was noted that at a future Council meeting further approval would be required for 
the remediation costs for the land and approval for the disposal of the asset for a 
capital receipt.   Council was asked to approve a reserve movement of £500k from 
the Local Priorities Reserve to the Regeneration Reserve in order to ensure there 
was sufficient funding in the Regeneration Reserve to finance the demolition works 
of £1.303m. A contract with GF Tomlinson Ltd was entered into on 18 March 2022 
for the sum of £1,303,981.92 and contractors were mobilised on the 18 April 2022 
after obtaining discharge of the relevant planning conditions required before 
commencement. There were numerous buildings on site requiring demolition.  
 
Demolition works were anticipated to take 36 weeks to complete. To monitor this 
programme, the contract sum and progress on site monthly client meetings have 
taken place.  A Quantity Surveyor from GF Tomlinson is also present to discuss the 
finances and any additional instructions are formally issued. 
 
Members raised the following points during discussion: 
 

• It was welcomed that good progress appeared to have been made. 
 

• Had the Council employed a Quantity Surveyor? 
 

• Was a survey completed when the land, including the 1904 building was 
bought and can a copy of the survey be obtained? 

 

• Who bears the costs of the demolition and rebuild of the 1904 building?  Will 
Burghley Land Ltd contribute to this cost? 

 

• The site is close to a well-established residential site.  Have any complaints 
been received about the work being carried out?  

 
The Head of Projects, Policy and Performance confirmed to the Committee that 
they acted as the client on behalf of the Council for the development with the 
assistance of a project manager who is also a qualified quantity surveyor that 
reported to them.  The Officer further clarified that two complaints had been 
received due to the dust that was problematic during the very hot weather in July.  
The site was dampened down to reduce the dust.  Members were informed that 
Burghley Land Ltd had already agreed to pay £250,000 toward Demolition works 
but the full cost for demolition of the 1904 building had yet to be confirmed.  
 
The Leader of the Council confirmed that a survey was completed upon the 
purchase of the land but that since the sale, further information had come to light.  

7



 
 

The Leader confirmed the findings that the 1904 building was no longer structurally 
sound were disappointing but that it was financially unviable to continue to maintain 
it.  It was clarified that the survey would be sent by email to all Members of the 
Committee as soon as possible. 

 
ACTION 3:    
 
The Committee will receive a copy of the Survey report by email following the 
meeting. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:  
 
a) Noted the update regarding the project  

  
31. Finance Update Report: April - August 2022 

 
The Chief Finance Officer presented the Finance Update Report to the Committee. 
 
During the current financial year, the Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee was to be provided with 
regular finance reports that monitor and forecast the budget against the current 
economic conditions that are facing the Council.  
 
The Officer informed the Members that external influences continued to impact the 
budgetary framework set by the Council in March 2022.  The overall projected 
deficit was approximately £817,000, partly mitigated by investment income having 
been budgeted at an assumed interest rate of 0.5%.  With rates currently at 4%, 
this income was a major contributory factor in reducing the deficit. 
 
The Officer clarified that continuing pressures on the Council finances included fuel 
and utilities costs. Fuel costs had been budgeted at £1.10 per litre and currently the 
cost was £1.35 to £1.40 per litre.  Further increase in price for utilities was expected 
from October 2022.    As yet there was no information on funding settlements from 
the Government and therefore the financial climate continued to be difficult and 
uncertain.  An inflationary reserve fund was created to mitigate some of these 
pressures.  Fees and charges were reduced in some areas such as Arts and live 
events and overall income levels remain uncertain. 
 
 
Contractual arrangements continued to challenge the Council with projected 
underspends.  This was largely due to contractors having difficulties with labour and 
supply chains.  Some planned schemes had been reduced as a result and 
reprofiling of housing growth has been considered on newbuilds for Swinegate, 
Grantham and Elizabeth Road in Stamford. 

 

8



 
 

 
Other considerations were that there continued to be a limited opportunity for 
external borrowing and an as yet unresolved pay award pending. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• The financial climate remained challenging and could get worse, therefore 
being the worst time to borrow money. 

 

• The Pay Award remained unresolved and could be more than planned for. 
 

• Was the Council still committed to the funding programme for the Deepings 
Leisure Centre? 

 

• Could the Government change its position on awarding the High Street 
funding? 

 

• Was there still a ‘levelling up’ agenda? 
 

• Was the investment income received referring to cash? 
 

• Could the information regarding the actions put forward at a working group be 
presented at the next Committee meeting? 

 

• Inflation rates could translate into real-term pay-cuts and influence staffing 
turnover and vacancies. 

 

• Why were salary costs higher when vacancies had increased in numbers? 
 

• Maintenance costs of vehicles should have been reasonably foreseen to 
reduce end-of-life costs. 

 

• Quality targets for council housing were consistently missed or programmes 
delayed. 

 

• Some risk factors were nearing red, an area for concern. 
 

• At what stage would the Council take radical action such as borrowing more 
money or spending reserve funds? 

 

• Will the Food Waste Scheme be taken up again in the future? 
 

• Were the Council progressing with the acquisition of properties on the open 
market? 

 
The Chief Finance Officer informed the Committee that Local Authorities all over 
the country were feeling the impact of the economic crisis.  It would be expected 

9



 
 

that the Government would provide some level of financial support in order to 
enable authorities to maintain services.     
 
The Leader of the Council informed the Committee that as the Council is at tier 3 
level of Local Government, the Authority is unable to benefit from the ‘levelling-up’ 
scheme.  However, the Council had legal agreements with the Government 
securing existing schemes such as the UK Shared Prosperity Fund that would 
contribute to updating High Streets.  As a Member of the District Councils Network, 
the Authority is pushing for more than a one-year settlement but were not expecting 
this to be granted. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that the investment income referred to 
cash balances that were currently earning 4% and it was anticipated that these 
rates would continue to rise. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer informed Members that the working group would 
continue to monitor the financial situation and look at cost-reduction strategies.  It 
was agreed that an overview of actions agreed would be brought to the Finance 
Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in November 2022.  Members were also informed that tough choices had to be 
made and housing maintenance programmes were having to be delayed in some 
cases.  The Stock Condition survey was not yet complete but the results would be 
informative.  The current market could not sustain work at a quick speed due to 
labour shortages and suppliers issues.    The Officer explained that the Council 
budgeted for a 3% staff turnover rate and that many vacancies may temporarily be 
filled by agency staff who are charged at a premium rate. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that further checks on vehicles were to be 
carried out.  Currently the Council owns the fleet of vehicles outright and perhaps 
this may change following a review.  Refuse lorries were amongst the largest of 
costs and each vehicle currently was kept for 8 years.  It was important to find the 
most efficient solutions in an ever-changing climate.  
 
The Leader of the Council added that the existing housing stock needed to be 
maintained as a priority before the acquisition of properties on the open market.  
The stock condition survey would inform the focus of resources.   

 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 

 
That the Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:  

 
a) Reviewed and noted the forecast 2022/23 outturn position for the 

General Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of 
August 2022 and identified any variances that require action or 
investigation.  

 

10



 
 

b) Recommended any specific actions or interventions that should be 
considered in order to reduce the General Fund forecast deficit.  
 
 

32. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The Committee noted the contents of the Work Programme 2022 – 2023. 
 
Members agreed to add the following items to the agenda for the Committee 
meeting on 22 November 2022: 

 

• An update on the ‘Changing Places’ scheme 
 

• Finance Update Report including Inflationary pressures  
 

• Housing Stock update 
 

• Call-handling data from the telephony system 
 

33. Exclusion of Press and Public 
 

The Chairman informed the Committee that while the report on the Grantham High 
Street Shop Front Scheme was not exempt, some of the information within the 
appendix was and the Committee could vote to exclude the press and public if they 
wanted to discuss this information.  

 
34. Update on the Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone Shop Front and 

Building Regeneration Programme 
 

The South Kesteven District Council Corporate Plan (2020-2023) identifies 
delivering growth as fundamental to the success of the District, its businesses and 
residents. Developing the centres and high streets of South Kesteven’s four towns 
is a priority. A key action is the regeneration of Grantham town centre, supported by 
the Future High Street Programme and delivery of the Heritage Action Zone project. 
 
The Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone (HSHAZ), administered by Historic 
England, was an England-wide funding programme which sits alongside the Future 
High Street Fund (FHSF) to support the regeneration of town centres. Members of 
Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee received a progress update on the £5.56 million FHSF projects in 
Grantham on 3 May 2022. 
 
The Leader of the Council presented the report and informed Members that the 
funding grants up to 80% of design and build costs to reinstate historic features of 
buildings such as a timber shopfront and slate roof.  £1,250,000 was approved at 
full Council on 2 March 2020.  In recent years, poor quality alterations have 
destroyed the character of some of the buildings within the town’s centre. 

 

11



 
 

To be eligible, properties must pre-date 1939 and be located within the High Street, 
Westgate or Market Place, Grantham.  Project Officers are to work closely with 
shop owners and Historic England to see which projects may be taken forward. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• The Scheme was welcomed by Members and was expected to attract tourists 
from far and wide 

 

• The impact of traffic was a challenge 
 

• The uplift should be valid for the needs of today, such as the alfresco area in 
Westgate 

 

• Were the upstairs areas to be considered too? 
 

The Leader of the Council stated that the Grantham Southern Relief Road was to 
take a lot of traffic, especially lorries from the town centre.  22 apartments above 
shops had also been identified as eligible.  Any shop owners that were unwilling to 
contribute would be reached out to in an attempt to gain support. 
 
The Chairman added that they were energised and felt positive about the future of 
Grantham. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 

 
That Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee:  

 
a) Celebrated the progress made on the capital elements of the shopfront 

and building regeneration schemes within the Grantham High Street 
Heritage Action Zone Programme.  
 

35. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstance 
decides is urgent 

 
There were none. 

 
36. Close of Meeting 

 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 16:00. 

 
 

12



ACTION SHEET 
 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the meeting held on 27 November 2022.  

Min 
No 

Agenda Item Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 

27 28. Updates from the 
previous meeting 

That the Committee receive call 
data as requested at the 22 
November Committee meeting. 
 

Claire Moses  
(Head of 
Revenues, 
Benefits and 
Customer Service) 

Has been added to the Work 
Programme for November 2022 
meeting of the Committee 

22 
November 
2022 
 
COMPLETE 

29. Draft ICT Strategy 
2022 - 2025 

That the Committee will receive 
details of the action plan for the ICT 
Strategy 

Alison Hall-Wright 
(Assistant Director 
of Finance) 
 

Members to receive a verbal update 
at the meeting on 22 November 2022 

22 
November 
2022 

30 Update on St Martin's 
Park Demolition Works 

29.  

The Committee will receive a copy 
of the Survey report by email 
following the meeting. 
 

Debbie Roberts 
(Head of Projects, 
Policy and 
Performance) 

Email to be sent to all Members of 
Committee 

 
Complete 

 

13

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

22 November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Deputy Leader of the Council 
 
 

 

 

Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/24 
 

Report Author 

Claire Moses, Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service 

  01476 406210 ext. 6484 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report is for Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to review the consultation responses and comment on the proposed 
Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/24, as well as proposals made in relation to 
the discount for care leavers, discount for Special Constables and Discretionary Hardship 
Fund. 
 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Recommends to Cabinet the proposed Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
for 2023/24 after considering the feedback from the recent consultation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The actual cost of the discount scheme for 2023/24 will not be known for certain 

until the end of that financial year and will be dependent on the actual caseload in 

year as well as the levels of Council Tax set by the District Council and the major 

precepting authorities. 

1.2 Estimated cost of the scheme, based on current caseload, is taken into 

consideration when calculating the Council’s tax base for the financial year and 

will impact on the estimated Council Tax yield for the year.  Any difference in the 

actual cost of the discount scheme to that estimated in the tax base calculation will 

be accounted for within the Collection Fund and will be considered when future 

years surpluses or deficits are declared. 

1.3 The Discretionary Payment fund of £30,000 made available in previous years and 

is proposed for 2023/24. 

1.4 Should the Council wish to approve the proposal to continue of the Council Tax 

Discount for Police Special Constables, this will be a direct cost to the General 

Fund of circa £10,000 for awards relating to 2022/23 (if all eligible Special 

Constables applied for the discount) 

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer and s151 Officer  

 

 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.5 The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (England) Regulations 

2012, laid before Parliament on 22nd November 2012, set out the regulations for a 

default scheme and this was adopted by the Council subject to local policy needs 

16



in January 2013.  The Secretary of State has issued amendment regulations 

setting out some changes that must be adopted by the Council for pensioners and 

the Council had also decided in 2013 to keep the schemes allowances and 

premiums in line with those for Housing Benefit for working age claimants.  These 

are incorporated into amendments to the local scheme for approval by the 

Council. 

1.6 The regulations for the scheme proposed to be adopted are to be collated and 

made available for Council in January 2023. 

 

Completed by Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy 

Monitoring Officer  

 

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.7 The Council, along with the other preceptors, bears the risk of the cost of the 

Council Tax Support scheme should caseload increase cause the cost to increase 

more than predicted. 

1.8 Any revisions to the scheme must be approved by 31 January 2023. 

1.9 The scheme cannot be changed mid-year and therefore it is vital the correct 

scheme is in place. 

 

Completed by: Tracey Elliot, Governance and Risk Officer 

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Council Tax Benefit system was abolished on 31 March 2013 and replaced by 

the Local Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS). This scheme can be determined 

locally by the Billing Authority having had due consultation with precepting 

authorities, key stakeholders, and residents. 

 

2.2 There are currently 7,414 residents claiming Council Tax Support in the South 

Kesteven District. Of these, 3,141 are pensioners and 2,731 are vulnerable 

working age, who are protected under the legislation and receive Council Tax 

support as prescribed by the Government (broadly similar to the level of Council 

Tax Benefit). It is the 1,542 remaining working age claimants where a local 

scheme can be determined which can change the level of support provided. 

 

2.3 A breakdown of caseload can be seen in the table below: 

 

1st of month Working age Pension age Total 

September 2019 4,190 3,451 7,641 

December 2019 4,223 3,403 7,626 

March 2020 4,290 3,374 7,664 

June 2020 4,955 3,354 8,309 

17



1st of month Working age Pension age Total 

September 2020 4,950 3,320 8,270 

December 2020 4,941 3,272 8,213 

March 2021 4,881 3,246 8,127 

June 2021 4,936 3,244 8,180 

September 2021 4,611 3,205 7,816 

December 2021 4,387 3,197 7,584 

March 2022 4,388 3,164 7,552 

June 2022 4,356 3,162 7,518 

October 2022* 4,273 3,141 7,414 

 

 *Data as at 27 October 2022 

 

2.4 The Council agreed to a Council Tax Support scheme which came into effect on 

1 April 2013. The scheme currently provides 80% entitlement for working age 

claimants. 

 

2.5 The proposed scheme must go through specific steps to comply with the 

provisions stated in the Local Government Finance Act 2012 before it can be 

adopted by this Council as the Billing Authority: - 

Before making a scheme, the authority must (in the following order): - 

(a) consult any major precepting authority which have power to 

issue a precept to it 

(b) publish a draft scheme in such a manger as it thinks fit; and 

(c) consult such other persons as it considers are likely to have an 

interest in the operation of the scheme 

 

2.6 Any scheme design has a wide-ranging set of competing and sometimes, 

conflicting objectives that need to be considered.  These can be listed as (in no 

particular order): - 

 

➢ National welfare benefits 

➢ Cost of Living 

➢ Council budget capacity 

➢ Council tax collection rates 

➢ Economy 

➢ Demographics 

➢ Caseload (need for support) 

➢ Council objectives 

➢ Other Council comparisons 

 

18



2.7 A report was presented to this Committee on 19 July 2022, giving more details 

with regards to the impact of the move of legacy benefits to Universal Credit, and 

the impacts of cost of living. 

 

2.8 Given the current operating context, it will be problematic to fundamentally re-

assess any Council Tax scheme due to the volatility that is impacting on a 

number of the objectives listed above. 

 

2.9 Despite the scheme being a ‘local’ CTS scheme due to the nature of protection 

provided to pensioners and vulnerable working age customers, there will always 

be an element of cost that the Council has to incur and for which it has no 

influence over. 

 

2.10 The current caseload can be broken down as follows, to show those customers 

where the scheme changes would apply: 

 

Caseload breakdown Caseload % of caseload 

Total caseload 7,414 100% 

Pensioner 3,141 42.37% 

Working age vulnerable 2,731 36.84% 

Working age 1,542 20.79% 

 

2.11 In order to try and contain the cost of the 2022/23 scheme within the budget 

parameters, a number of options were modelled and considered. 

 

2.12 Based on caseload as at 27 October 2022, the current cost of the 2022/23 

scheme is £7,056,973 with South Kesteven’s share of this being £635,127 (9%).  

 

2.13 Due to this protection from changes to pensioners and vulnerable working age 

customers, any ‘savings’ to be made to the proposed scheme can only be applied 

to the 1,542 customers, or 20.79% of the caseload. This means out of the current 

Council spend of £635,127 – only £132.043 (20.79%) can be influenced by a 

change to the current scheme. 

 

2.14 The reality is that out of any potential options that may reduce spend against 

budget is to decrease the ‘maximum entitlement’ – e.g. to reduce the maximum 

CTS customers can receive from the current position of 80%. The consultation 

included a question with regards to the level of maximum entitlement, asking 

consultees whether they agreed with the current scheme, of which 74.07% of 

respondents did agree. 

 

 

 

 

 

19



Current Local Council Tax Support Scheme – 2022/23 

2.15 The current scheme has the following restrictions to working age customers: 

(i)  Maximum entitlement capped at 80%; 

 

2.16 The current scheme has the following amendments to Council tax technical 

restrictions for all Council Tax Payers: 

(i)    Introduction of additional premium charges for empty properties 

1. Empty up to two years – premium of 100% 

2. Empty between two and five years – premium of 200% 

3. Empty after 10 years – premium of 300% 

 

(ii) Unoccupied discount of 100% for the first month; 

(iii) Care leavers council tax exemption – 100% for those aged between their 

18th and 25th birthdays; and 

(iv) Special Constabulary discount scheme of 25%. 

 

Council Tax Exemption for care leavers 

2.17 The scheme was first approved for 2019/20, for a local discretionary Council Tax 

discount of up to 100% for care leavers aged 18 to 21 years, with the discount 

ending on the individuals 22nd birthday.   

2.18 The scheme was amended for 2021/22 and the, the age limit was increased to 

24 years of age, with the discount ending on the individuals 25th birthday. 

 

Special Constabulary Council Tax Discount Scheme 

2.19 The scheme was first approved for 2022/23.  Currently, we have 3 Special 

Constables in receipt of the discount. 

2.20 If the scheme is approved to continue in 2023/24, the award of the discount will 

be referenced to service during 2022/23. As a result, the eligibility for the 

discount will be considered, and an award made no later than the 31 May of the 

following financial year and will be applied to the Council tax account in 2023/24. 

2.21 If the scheme continues, the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) will write to 

all Special Constables who live within the district of South Kesteven, by 30 April 

2023, confirming they have met the hours worked criteria, and will provide a link 

to the Councils website. 

2.22 The Special Constable will be required to complete the application form and 

upload the letter from the PCC. An award will be made no later than 31 May 

2023. 

2.23 The award of the discount will be referenced to service during 2022/23. As a 

result, the eligibility for the discount will be considered, and an award made no 

20



later than the 31 May of the following financial year and will be applied to the 

Council tax account in 2023/24. 

 

Discretionary Payment Fund 

2.24 A Discretionary Payment (DP) is available to anyone in receipt of Council Tax 

Support and have a shortfall between the weekly amount awarded and their 

Council Tax liability. 

2.25 The total amount of funding allocated for each year is £30,000. For 2022/23, the 

decision was taken to move any unspent funding from 2021/22 into the new year. 

As a result, in 2022/23 there was a total of £38,815 funding available. 

 

2.26 To date, £15,472 has been awarded, meaning there is £23,343 remaining, to be 

issued up to 31 March 2023. 

 

2.27 Discretionary Payments can be applied for independently but are often considered 

as part of the application process for Discretionary Housing Payments (support for 

shortfall between Housing Benefit / Universal Credit award and eligible rent).  

Officers are aware of the DP and actively encourage customers to apply where 

eligibility criteria is met. 

 

2.28 Work is being undertaken as part of the Cost of Living Strategic Working Group to 

promote the funding to ensure support is available by those impacted by current 

cost of living pressures. 

 

2.29 In addition to this, residents will also be supported by South Kesteven District 

Council in the form of the Household Support Fund (HSF) grant.  The Council are 

working in collaboration with Lincolnshire County Council and the Lincolnshire 

Districts to agree a scheme for implementation. 

 

Consultation and communication: 

2.30 A report was presented to this committee on 19 July 2022 to consider the 

following recommendations: - 

 

(b) No changes to the financial element of the scheme – retain the current 

scheme at 80% maximum entitlement; 

(c) The inclusion of a requirement that any national schemes introduced during 

the financial year are not considered or taken into consideration should the 

scheme result in a reduction in Council tax Support for the claimant; and 

(d) Approve a consultation process for the above two proposals 

 

2.31 The decision by this Committee was to approve the commencement of the 

consultation for the 2023/24 Localised Council Tax support scheme on a ‘no-

21



change’ basis and to consider the outcome of the consultation findings prior to 

making a recommendation for the final scheme to Council. 

 

2.32 Public consultation began on 26 September 2022 and ran to 21 October 2022. 

Consultation has been undertaken with major precepting authorities, 

stakeholders and residents through a variety of methods, as detailed below: - 

➢ An online survey (paper surveys were issued upon request); 

➢ All South Kesteven District Council Members and Parish Clerks were 

issued with an email advising them of the consultation; 

➢ Partner organisations were also advised of the proposed scheme – 

include Citizens Advice; and 

➢ Major preceptors – Police and Crime Commission and Lincolnshire 

County Council  

 

Key Findings from the public consultation: 

2.33 There were a total of 7,414 residents eligible to respond to the survey, and of 

these, 27 did respond – this is a rate of 0.36%. The key findings are detailed 

below 

1) 20 or 84.07% of respondents support the current scheme, which 

includes the continuation of the Council Tax exemption for care leavers, 

the Council Tax discount for Special Constables and the Discretionary 

Payment fund. 

2) There was an additional question asked, which enabled the respondent 

to provide commentary. These have been grouped into common 

themes: - 

(i) The criteria for eligibility need to be reviewed, to take into 

account the detrimental effect on pensioners / low income; 

(ii) Carers aren't included; 

(iii) The support is not enough, it needs to be 100%; and 

(iv) General comments relating to cost of living and impact on mental 

health; 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 These are set out in the report. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Options considered are set out in the Finance, Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee report on 19 July 2022. 

22



 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 These are set out in the report. 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The timetable to approve any change to the new scheme is set out below and 

considers the existing calendar of meetings.  The full Council as Billing Authority 

needs to approve the scheme after consultation as outlined in paragraph 2.5. 

 

6.2 The timetable is as follows: - 

 

➢ 13 December 2022: Cabinet – recommendation of scheme for 2023/24 for 

Council 

➢ 26 January 2023: Council – decision required: approval of final 2023/24 

scheme for implementation from 1 April 2023.  The Local Government Finance 

Act 2012 requires a full review of the scheme by the Billing Authority.  South 

Kesteven District Council will need to approve a new scheme after consultation 

by 31 January 2023. 

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 A full report was presented to Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 19 July 2022 (item 7) agreeing to 

recommendations for consultation. The report can be accessed here: 

moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=4273 

 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 There are two appendices to this report, as details below: 

 

a) Appendix 1: Lincolnshire County Council consultation response 

b) Appendix 2: Police and Crime Commissioner consultation response 

 

 

 

 

 

23

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=4273


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 

Dear Claire 
 
Thanks for sharing the consultation and we have nothing to feedback on the SKDC 
proposals.  
 
Thanks 
Andrew 
 
Andrew Crookham 

Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Resources 

  
Lincolnshire County Council 
County Offices, Newland, Lincoln, LN1 1YL 

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

2022-1253 20221021 LT Richard Wyles SKDC - Council Tax Support Scheme 2023-24
  Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Deepdale Lane, Nettleham, Lincoln  LN2 2LT  
Telephone (01522) 947192 Fax (01522) 558739 

E-Mail:  lincolnshire-pcc@lincs.police.uk   Website: www.lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk 
  

  

Date:  21 October 2022 
Our Ref:  JF/ch/kc/2022-1253                                                    

 
Mr Richard Wyles 
Chief Finance Officer 
South Kesteven District Council 
Council Offices 
St Peter’s Hill 
GRANTHAM 
Lincolnshire   NG31 6PZ 
 
By email only to:  R.WYLES@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Richard 
 
Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/24 

 
Thank you for your letter of 27th September 2022 in which you invite comment on South Kesteven 
District Council’s proposed Council Tax Support Scheme for 2023/24. I note that no changes to 
the current scheme are proposed. 
 
The PCC welcomes the Council’s proposed continuation of the council tax discount scheme for 
Special Constables. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Julie Flint 
Chief Finance Officer 
 
  

27

mailto:lincolnshire-pcc@lincs.police.uk
http://www.lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk/
mailto:R.WYLES@southkesteven.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

22 November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke, 
Leader of the Council 
 

 

 

Progress update on the new South Kesteven 

Economic Development Strategy 2023 - 2028 
 

Report Author 

Jon Hinde, Head of Economic Development 

  Jon.hinde@investsk.co.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to share a first draft of the emerging South Kesteven Economic 

Development Strategy (2023 – 2028) and provide recent data relating to key economic 

drivers for the District. 

 

Recommendations 

That the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Service Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Consider and offer feedback on the first draft of the South Kesteven Economic 
Development Strategy (2023 – 2028). 

2. Agrees the Council should consult on the draft strategy with Council members 
and the local business community, prior to final approval for adoption by 1 
April 2023. 

29

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific financial implications linked to this specific report however 

economic benefit to both the Council and wider District will be a key driver identified 

within the Strategy itself. Any costs incurred will be met from the service budgets 

approved by Council. 

 

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no significant legal or governance implications arising from this report. It 

 is considered good practice to undertake consultation with key stakeholders on 

 significant strategic documents such as the Economic Development Strategy. 

 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  South Kesteven District Council recognises economic growth and supporting the 

creation of new jobs, is a fundamental role of the District Council. Growth and our 

Economy is one of the five strategic priorities contained within the current Corporate 

Plan (2020-2023). The Council has several key roles to play in delivering economic 

growth.  

 

30



2.2 This report seeks Members views on the first draft of the emerging Economic 

Development Strategy that is due to be adopted from 1 April 2023 to ensure the 

focus and priorities are sufficiently captured and where the Council can have the 

greatest impact through leadership, influence and delivery against its own priorities.  

 

2.3 During 27 June 2022 meeting of this Committee, Members were made aware that 

a scoping exercise was underway to bring forward a new Economic Development 

Strategy for the District to cover the period 2023 – 2028.  Several reasons for why 

a new Strategy was required were given, in brief these were:  

 

• the previous strategy having expired in 2021 

• the closure of InvestSK Ltd and the economic development function being 

insourced from April 2022 

• the economic landscape post European Union Transition and the COVID-19 

pandemic 

• the emerging Government Levelling Up agenda and the replacement of 

European Structural Funds with the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF).  

 

2.4 A key element of this report, is the updated economic intelligence which provides a 

number of local data sets gathered from the Office of National Statistics (ONS/ 

Nomis), The Centre for Entrepreneurs (CfE) and Scarborough Tourism Economic 

Activity Monitor (STEAM). This is the most up to date economic data available and 

provides a great deal of information about the District across eight key indicators: 

 

• Population of South Kesteven: 143,200 (ONS 2021 census) 

• Households in South Kesteven: 55,894 (ONS 2021 census) 

• Businesses in South Kesteven: 6,265 (ONS 2022) 

• Net gain business growth between 2017 and 2022: 345 (ONS 2022) 

• New Businesses Start Ups in 2020: 926 (Centre for Entrepreneurs) 

• South Kesteven Businesses Employ: 54,000 (ONS 2021) 

• Average resident earnings: £583 per week (Nomis 2021) 

• Visitors to South Kesteven in 2021: 2.72m (STEAM 2021) 

2.5 Further analysis of the data provides information regarding a breakdown of the 

business sectors in the District, detailing the number of businesses and number of 

people employed within each sector. This information has been vital in allowing the 

identification of the key sectors within the South Kesteven economy, namely: 

 

• Manufacturing (and Engineering) 

• Construction 

• Retail and Wholesale 

• Accommodation and Food Services 

• Professional, scientific and technical 

• Business administration and support services 

 

31



2.6  The information provides a clear breakdown of the size of businesses across the 

District and illustrates reliance upon ‘micro businesses’ within the local economy: 

 

Micro (0-9) 5,500 

Small (10–49) 655 

Medium (50-249) 95 

Large (250 +) 15 

TOTAL 6,265 

 

2.7 The identification of this detailed level of data enables the setting of a baseline 

against which to frame the new Economic Development Strategy and supports the 

economic development vision the Council aims to set for South Kesteven: 

 

• Have thriving market towns that we can all be proud of 

• A buoyant and resilient economy that includes national companies with local 

roots and a strong, vibrant business base 

• A culture of celebrating enterprise and innovation through new business creation 

• An enabling and proactive approach to new inward investment and developer 

enquiries 

• To be a District recognised for higher level skills delivery and attainment 

• To grow job numbers through higher skilled, higher paid employment 

• Creating opportunities for young people to stay and meet their life aspirations 

within the District 

• For housing and commercial developments to be delivered in parallel to meet 

the needs of both future employers and residents 

• Make it easy for businesses and visitors to access the District and ensure we 

are well connected to the wider world through a modern integrated transport and 

digital infrastructure 

2.8 The strategy identifies links to other plans and partner organisations the Council will 

collaborate on, to meet the aims of the strategy. These are identified within the 

strategy and include: Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership, 

Department for Work and Pensions, Federation of Small Businesses (FSB), 

Lincolnshire Chamber of Commerce and several local business support groups and 

educational establishments.  

 

2.9 Importance is being placed within the strategy on recognising the achievements 

and ongoing projects overseen by the Council’s economic development function 

during the life of the previous Economic Development Strategy and the InvestSK 

Business Plans. These achievements are many and wide ranging, with over £16 

million of external funding secured to deliver projects, support community groups, 

fund COVID-19 response activity and enhance educational facilities. It also 

identifies £53 million of COVID business support, administered by Officers and 

recognised as an exemplar at the recent FSB Local Government Awards.  

 

 

 

32



 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The draft strategy can be found at Appendix A. Subject to the views of committee 

and further consultation with lead service areas identified in the strategy and key 

stakeholders, partners and the business community, it is proposed a final report 

(including measures, resource implications and an Equality Impact Assessment) will 

be presented to FEDCO Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 22nd February 2023  

prior to formal adoption by SKDC Cabinet before 1st April 2023.  

 

3.2 It is anticipated that once agreed, the Finance, Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will receive regular progress 

and performance reports from lead service areas as outlined in the strategy.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 It could be considered for the economic development function to become purely 

reactive to Government announcements regarding policy and funding, and for the 

Council to create a series of short-term action plans to deliver against. However, 

without an overall strategy document that is wholly produced and owned by the 

District, it is almost impossible to deliver a coordinated economic development 

function focussed on achieving the vision set. Therefore, the ‘do noting’ option has 

been discounted. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Committee’s views on the draft Economic Development Strategy are required to 

inform the finalisation of the Strategy prior to its adoption. The Strategy will also 

inform Cabinet’s consideration of its budget in a future meeting.  

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 Production of the strategy has been an ongoing process led by the Council’s 

Economic Development Team. As well as bringing a previous report to this 

Committee, there has been ongoing dialogue with a number of internal departments 

and external stakeholders, all of whom have helped to set the proposed vision for 

the District over the Strategy’s five-year period. 

 

6.2 In shaping the vision, of note has been the invaluable help from organisations 

providing funding for the delivery of town centre initiatives as well as existing 

landowners, prospective inward investors and developers. However, subject to 

Member approval, it is suggested more consultation is necessary to help identify 

how the District needs to present itself to be attractive to new investors, visitors, 

businesses and current and future residents. 

 

33



6.3 As a minimum, the emerging strategy will continue to go through a period of internal 

officer and member consultation, prior to final adoption. 

  

7. Background Papers 

 
7.1 South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy 2016-2021, available online via: 

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16981&p=0 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix A: DRAFT South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy 2023 - 2028 

 

 

 

34

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=16981&p=0


 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

2023 – 2028 

 

 

Welcome to the first draft of the new South Kesteven Economic 

Development Strategy 2023 – 2028 

The strategy is due to be adopted from 1st April 2023 and will be the 

blueprint for economic development activity across the District over the 5 

year period. 

Your feedback is welcomed on the content of the strategy and the 

economic development visions that have been identified in order to grow 

a robust and resilient South Kesteven economy. 

The consultation process for the strategy will be ongoing over the coming 

months and will incorporate workshops held with elected Members, 

external stakeholders and lead services areas from across the Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

2023 – 2028 

 

 

• South Kesteven by numbers 

 

• South Kesteven – A place to live, work and visit 

 

• The Economic Development vision 

 

• The new Economic Development Strategy 

 

• Links to other plans and partners 

 

• Key sectors and District drivers 

 

• Measuring the success of the Strategy 

 

Appendices: 

 

• Key achievements and projects to date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

             

36



 

South Kesteven District by numbers  

 

➢ Population: 143,200 (Nomis census 2021) 

 

➢ Households: 55,894 (ONS census 2021) 

 

➢ Businesses: 6,265 (Nomis 2022) 

 

➢ Business Growth: 345 (net gain between 2017 and 2022) 

 

➢ New Businesses: 926 in 2020 (Centre for Entrepreneurs) 

 

➢ Employment: 54,000 (ONS 2021) 

 

➢ Average resident earnings: £583 weekly (Nomis 2021) 

 

➢ Annual visitors: 2.72m (STEAM 2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



 

South Kesteven - a place to live, work and visit 

South Kesteven is a large, thriving Lincolnshire district at the heart of England, 

encompassing more than 80 rural villages and four market towns: Grantham, 

Stamford, Market Deeping and Bourne. 

Strategically located beside the A1 and the East Coast high speed mainline, South 

Kesteven’s connectivity with the rest of the UK makes it a prime spot for investment 

and doing business. 

With rolling hills and beautiful Jurassic Lincolnshire limestone villages, excellent 

education facilities, great housing and a diverse, growing economy. South Kesteven 

is the perfect place to start and grow a business and bring up a family. 

There remains huge untapped potential across the District for bringing forward further 

activity in both residential and commercial developments. This, coupled with the 

nationally acclaimed connectivity infrastructure, is attracting interest from a number of 

potential inward investors and developers. 

<Insert map for geographical context>  

38



 

The positive tick list: 

This Strategy aims to build on the District’s economic strengths to support a resilient, 

productive, low carbon and high-value economy. With a growing population of over 

143,000 and unemployment lower than both the East Midlands and national averages, 

South Kesteven is a major economic engine in the region. 

Accessibility and connectivity:  

- Strategically located beside the A1 and excellent links to other arterial routes  

- A one-hour commute by rail to London from both Grantham and Stamford  

- Easy access to several airports  

Great quality of life:  

- High quality housing developments coming forward at pace 

- Ample green spaces and community facilities  

- Four vibrant market towns 

- Strong tourism offer  

- Government funding already secured to develop public spaces and improve the 

residential offer 

Education:  

- Outstanding schools 

 

- Excellent further education offering 

 

- Several higher education establishments all within an hour’s commute 

 

Strong Business Base:  

More than 6,200 businesses covering a number of sectors and with major employers 

and company headquarters based throughout the District, including: Moy Park, The 

Woodland Trust, Totemic, Bakkavor, Park Air Systems, Alltech UK, XPO Logistics, 

Treasure Transport, Cummins Generator Technologies, Sophie Allport. 

Availability and affordability of sites and premises:  

39



 

With residential and commercial land costing less per acre than other neighbouring 

cities and regions and with a new Local Plan in development, it is easy to see why 

South Kesteven is proving attractive to prospective developers and inward investors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

40



 

The Economic Development Vision for South Kesteven 

The economic development vision for the District builds upon the South Kesteven 

District Council Economic Development Strategy 2016 – 2021 which identified South 

Kesteven as “the economic jewel of Greater Lincolnshire - with the strongest economic 

metrics and performance in the sub-region.  

South Kesteven’s location at the gateway of significant established and potential 

economic activity means it is perfectly placed to lead, and drive continued economic 

growth to meet the needs of incumbent and new businesses for years to come”. 

This provides a strong foundation and sets the ambitions on which to deliver the 

vision for the District going forward: 

➢ To have thriving market towns that we can all be proud of 

 

➢ A buoyant and resilient economy that includes national companies with local roots 

and a strong, vibrant business base 

 

➢ Creating a culture of celebrating enterprise and innovation through new business 

creation 

 

➢ Demonstrating an enabling and proactive approach to new inward investment and 

developer enquiries 

 

➢ To be a District recognised for higher level skills delivery and attainment 

 

➢ To see a demonstrable growth in job numbers through higher skilled, higher paid 

employment 

 

➢ To create opportunities for young people to stay and meet their life aspirations 

within the District 

 

➢ For housing and commercial developments to be delivered in parallel to meet the 

needs of both future employers and residents 

 

➢ To have a joined up visitor economy offer that brings people to the District for 

longer and increases levels of spending 

 

➢ To make it easy for businesses and visitors to access the District and ensure we 

are well connected to the wider world through a modern integrated transport and 

digital infrastructure 

 

➢ To develop a low carbon circular economy 

 

 

 

41



 

The new South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy (2023 – 

2028) 

South Kesteven District Council recognises economic growth and supporting the 

creation of new jobs as a fundamental role of the District Council. Growth and our 

Economy is one of the five strategic priorities contained within the Corporate Plan 

(2020-2023) and the Council has several key roles to play in delivering economic 

growth. The Council is committed to doing what it can to promote and deliver economic 

growth and the creation of new jobs for the District’s residents.  

The previous South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy spanned 2016 – 2021 

and formed a key part of the strategy for the implementation of InvestSK Ltd, the wholly 

council owned regeneration and economic development company for the District. 

InvestSK was operational from October 2017, became a fully incorporated Limited 

Company in October 2018 and operated as an arms-length company of South 

Kesteven District Council until March 2022, when the company was dissolved, and the 

regeneration and economic development functions transferred into the Council’s 

Growth and Culture Directorate. 

Delivery of both the (former) Economic Development Strategy and the InvestSK 

Business Plan effectively ceased in March 2020 with the onset of the COVID-19 

pandemic, with all the company’s activity and resource focusing on administration of 

central Government COVID grants to businesses in the District. This situation 

remained (to varying degrees) until March 2022 when the final grant schemes ended.  

Following the conclusion of the previous strategy, coupled with the unprecedented 

events of the last two years, it is necessary to bring forward a new Economic 

Development Strategy that reflects both a post-pandemic and post-Brexit economy.  

A further key influencer in the development of a new strategy is the emerging UK 

Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) as a key pillar of the Government’s Levelling Up 

agenda. The UKSPF is the Government’s domestic replacement for the European 

Structural and Investment Fund (ESIF) which the UK continues to participate in until 

2023. This will see South Kesteven District Council receive a £3,898,582 allocation of 

mainly revenue funding, to support communities and place, businesses and people 

and skills.  A further £540,000 has been allocated to specifically support the rural 

economy. 

This new Strategy identifies an economic baseline, market context, and a clear 

economic development vision for South Kesteven that can be measured on an 

ongoing basis throughout the life of the strategy. 

Furthermore, the strategy will take into account and recognise the existing key 

economic development objectives already set for the Council’s economic development 

function: 

• Business and Job Creation  

• Skills development  

• Growth and Regeneration  

• Enhancing South Kesteven’s tourism and visitor economy offer 

42



 

• Income Generation  

• Securing Council Returns 

As part of its wider commitment to being a green council, South Kesteven District 

Council declared a climate emergency with cross-party support in 2019.  A Climate 

Change Officer was recruited to help meet its ambition to be net-zero carbon as soon 

as viable before 2050 and reduce its carbon footprint by at least 30% before 2030. A 

further developing objective that will form part of the plan for the next five years is a 

commitment to promoting the green economy within South Kesteven and utilising 

economic development to increase the adaptive capacity of our communities in 

preparation for climate change hazards.   

 

Climate change areas to consider as part of the strategy are: 

• How to protect businesses from climate change-related events 

• Implementing nature-based solutions to improve towns 

• Attracting green businesses 

• Protecting the vulnerable 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



 

Links to other plans and partners 

The new South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy recognises and 

compliments a number of national, regional and sub regional plans and partner 

organisations. 

South Kesteven’s Economic Development Strategy aims to support economic growth 

locally whilst contributing to the wider Industrial Strategy which sets out the 

Government’s long-term vision for boosting productivity and earning power. This 

strategy will support delivery of the five foundations of productivity as identified in the 

Industrial Strategy:  

• Ideas through encouraging innovation  

• People through increasing skill levels and higher paid employment opportunities 
locally 

• Infrastructure through promoting and developing our key routes and connectivity 

• Business Environment through creating the best place to start and grow a 
business 

• Places by strengthening the economy of South Kesteven 
 
One of the primary stakeholders in this process will be the Greater Lincolnshire Local 

Enterprise Partnership (GLLEP). The Council enjoys a productive and mutually 

beneficial working relationship with the GLLEP and has collaborated on several 

activities over recent years, be that representation on the Lincolnshire Growth Hub 

Board, Team Lincolnshire Steering Group, submission of bid proposals for the Great 

British Railways Head Quarters, the Spitalgate Level Investment Zone and active 

participation at many GLLEP events and conferences.  

In delivering the new Economic Development Strategy, consideration of the wider 

County context will be given, including consulting directly with key GLLEP Officers to 

take learnings and insight from GLLEP produced plans and reports, including: 

• The Greater Lincolnshire’s Economic Plan for Growth – Protecting, Progressing, 

Prospering  

• The Greater Lincolnshire Local Industrial Strategy 

• The Greater Lincolnshire Skills Report 

Ultimately the South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy will support GLLEP 

and the wider Greater Lincolnshire in delivering its five priorities and drivers for 

success: 

• To drive the growth of the area’s defining and strongest sectors which offer the 
most competitive advantage 

• To grow specific opportunities identified as future defining features of the area 

• To drive this growth by putting expansion into new markets, modern 
telecommunications, infrastructure improvements and skills 

• To promote Greater Lincolnshire through improved transport infrastructure 
connecting trading markets and enabling better access to heritage, culture and 
communities 

44



 

• To recognise the need for new housing, and to support balanced housing and 
economic development by promoting our capacity to deliver high quality growth 

 
In order to ensure we maintain and further develop relationships with our partners and 
key stakeholders we will be forming a Local Economic Forum that will provide a 
platform for engagement, partnership working, sharing of best practise and influencing 
delivery and spend of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund and other future sources of 
funding. 
  
Overseen by lead Officers and Members from across the Council, the Forum will have 
representation from several key national, regional and local partners and stakeholders 
who will be instrumental in the success of the Forum and in delivering the overall 
Economic Development Strategy for the District. These include: 
 
The Federation of Small Businesses: www.fsb.org.uk 
Lincolnshire Chamber of Commerce: www.lincs-chamber.co.uk 
Business Lincolnshire: www.businesslincolnshire.com 
Department for Work and Pensions (Lincoln) www.dwp.gov.uk 
Midlands Engine: www.midlandsengine.org 
The Woodland Trust: www.woodlandtrust.org.uk 
The National Trust: www.nationaltrust.org.uk 
London and Continental Railways: www.lcrproperty.co.uk 
LNER: www.lner.co.uk 
University of Lincoln: www.lincoln.ac.uk 
Grantham Business Club: www.granthambusinessclub.com 
Bourne in Business: www.bournebusiness.co.uk 
Deepings Business Community: www.deepings.co.uk 
Grantham College: www.grantham.ac.uk 
Stamford College: www.stamford.ac.uk 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45

http://www.fsb.org.uk/
http://www.lincs-chamber.co.uk/
http://www.businesslincolnshire.com/
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.dwp.gov.uk&c=E,1,ch8Ca8OixYKvWBQekvHubJIEFXwV3k835CbqO3hXZZNtNcFqvBJddTeegACN-AQ1kANDrYYLW39iCf3mC_wlPAhx_OWksBXYjaqA1lkGTb-ndkEy_r9doQMu5NSC&typo=1
http://www.midlandsengine.org/
http://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/
http://www.nationaltrust.org.uk/
http://www.lcrproperty.co.uk/
http://www.lner.co.uk/
http://www.lincoln.ac.uk/
http://www.granthambusinessclub.com/
http://www.bournebusiness.co.uk/
http://www.deepings.co.uk/
http://www.grantham.ac.uk/
http://www.stamford.ac.uk/


 

 

Key sectors and District drivers  

The latest information available shows a business base of 6,265 businesses based 

within South Kesteven with a total employment population of 54,000 people. 

These can be identified by number of businesses and people employed within each 

of the following sector breakdown: 

Agriculture, forestry & fishing:  330  1,950    
Manufacturing:    510  6,900  
Construction:     910  2,500   
Retail and wholesale:   930            10,000  
Transport & Storage (inc postal):  360  1,750  
Accommodation & food services:  410  4,000  
Information & communication:  330  1,750  
Finance & insurance:   140    900  
Property:     235  1,000  
Professional, scientific & technical: 970  4,000  
Business admin & support services: 445  3,000  
Public administration & defence:    45  1,000  
Education:     110  5,000  
Health:     205   9,000 
Arts, entertainment & recreation:  335  1,250 
TOTAL     6,265  54,000 

Whilst there is a relatively even spread across the number of businesses within the 

District by sector this cannot be said for the size of business.  88% of all business in 

South Kesteven are micro firms, employing no more than nine employees: 

Micro (0-9)  5,500 
Small (10–49)    655 
Medium (50-249)      95 
Large (250 +)      15 
TOTAL  6,265 

When taking into account number of businesses and those employed within these 

businesses the primary employment sectors within South Kesteven District are: 

✓ Manufacturing (and Engineering) 

✓ Construction 

✓ Retail and Wholesale 

✓ Accommodation and Food Services 

✓ Professional, scientific and technical 

✓ Business administration and support services 

 

 

 

46



 

Measuring the Success of the South Kesteven Economic 

Development Strategy 2023 – 2028 

The success of this strategy will be measured by monitoring a number of Key 

Performance Indicators (KPIs) for each of the key economic objectives. These will 

include: 

1.  Business and Job Creation: 

- Increase in Inward Investment 

- Supporting Business Start Up 

- Enabling business growth and sustained business survival 

- Supporting Innovation and Growth Sectors 

- Supporting Business diversification 

 

2.  Skills Development 

- Increase in high value jobs across the District 

- Supporting the workforce to develop higher level skills 

- Reduction in the number of businesses reporting skills gaps 

- A reduction in the number of hard to fill vacancies 

- Linking educational establishments with local businesses 

 

3.  Growth and Regeneration 

- Supporting improved transport infrastructure and connectivity 

- Continue to promote the benefits of The A1 Corridor and wider place 

promotion 

- Use the success of the Future High Street Fund (FHSF) and Heritage Action 

Zone (HAZ) projects to support future town centre developments across the 

District 

- Supporting local centres to to serve their community 

- Improved digital infrastructure and connectivity right across the District 

 

4.  Enhancing South Kesteven’s tourism and visitor economy offer 

- Increase the number of visitors to the District 

- Increase the stay time of visitors to the District 

- Work with local attractions to build a District wide offer 

- Produce a South Kesteven specific visitor economy strategic framework 

- Provide specific support to ‘micro’ visitor economy businesses 

- Better use of our markets and events to support visitor numbers and spend 

 

5. Income Generation 

- Build on our existing strong track record of securing external funding  

- Maintain strong links with key external funding bodies 

- Be proactive in the submission of funding bids 

- Provide confidence to external funding bodies through strong performance 

and programme management 

- Be recognised nationally for the projects and programmes we develop and 

deliver 

47



 

 

6. Securing Council Returns 

- Increase Business Rate retention through creating an environment where 

businesses want to invest, start, grow and stay 

  

48



 

Appendices 

1. Key achievements and projects 

During the period of the previous South Kesteven District Council Economic 
Development Strategy and InvestSK Business Plans, there were several notable key 
achievements delivered which provided a sound footing on which to progress delivery 
of the new South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy.  
 
These achievements recognise both a developing track record of securing external 
funding and demonstrate the ability to engage successfully with local businesses, 
residents, landowners and developers. 
 

✓ In total throughout the period of the previous strategy and plans, £16.1 million 
of external funding for projects and programmes across the District was 
secured 

✓ £5.56 million secured for the Grantham Future High Streets Fund (FHSF) 
programme 

✓ £1.2 million secured for the Grantham High Street Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) 
programme 

✓ £90,000 secured for additional cultural activities 
✓ £68,300 secured from National Lottery Heritage Fund and Lincolnshire 

Community Foundation for Wake House in Bourne and Deeping St James 
Signal box project 

✓ Leading on several projects aligned to the £250,000 Government Welcome 
Back Fund 

✓ Over £53 million of Government COVID support grants administered to close 

to 3,000 South Kesteven businesses 

✓ Shortlisted for the East Midlands ‘Best COVID Response Award’ at the FSB 

Local Government Awards 

✓ Grantham shortlisted for the Academy of Urbanism ‘Great Town Award’ 

✓ Supported the successful outline planning application for 64 acres of 

employment land on the A1 corridor and 17 acres in the Bourne 

✓ In total, promoted over 300 acres of employment land to the national and 

international developer market 

✓ Increased the level of engagement from a baseline of 400 businesses to over 

1,200 businesses, and a further 580 intermediaries and support organisations 

✓ Continued to deliver networking events right across the District and virtually to 

on average 80 participants per event 

✓ Launched the HelloSK App, linking local businesses with over 1,000 consumers 

✓ Provided the recognised regional Business Start Up provider with the highest 

number of referrals in Lincolnshire 

✓ Introduced a dedicated Discover South Kesteven website showcasing local 

attractions and accommodation providers 

✓ A constantly growing social media following of over 4,000 users across the 

InvestSK and Discover South Kesteven platforms 

 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

       

Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

22 November 2022 

 

Report of  

Councillor Adam Stokes 

The Deputy Leader of the Council 

 

 

 

Finance Update Report: April – October 2022 
 

Report Author 

Claire Morgan (Senior Accountant) 

 
Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of Report 

To inform Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s forecast 2022/23 financial position as at the end of 

October 2022. The report covers the following areas:                                       
 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and Housing Revenue Account 

Recommendations 

 

That the Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Reviews and notes the forecast 2022/23 outturn position for the General 
Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of October 2022 
and identify any variances that require action or investigation. 

2. Recommends any specific actions or interventions that should be 
considered in order to reduce the General Fund forecast deficit. 

51

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Claire.morgan@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for 
publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

Healthy and strong communities 

Clean and sustainable environment 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 

 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

Finance and Procurement  

1.1 The financial implications are included within the report. 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

Legal and Governance 

1.2 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect 

of the financial position of Council expenditure during the year. 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

Risk and Mitigation 

1.3 A risk register is at Appendix E and shows that all known current risks are 

recognised and associated mitigating actions are in place. 

Completed by: Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer 

2 Background to the Report 

2.1 During the current financial year, the Finance, Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee is being provided with 

regular finance reports that monitor and forecast the budget against the current 

economic conditions that are facing the Council. 

 

 

52



3 Revenue Budget 2022/23 – General Fund  

3.1 The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 was £18.247m. Table 1 shows the 

summary of movements.  
 

Table 1 – General Fund Revenue Budget Amendments 
 

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  18,247 

April 2022 Regeneration Reserve 30 

April 2022 ICT Reserve 68 

May 2022 Invest to Save Reserve  500 

July 2022  2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 1,632 

August 2022 Waste Reserve 81 

Total  20,558 
 

3.2 The deficit forecast is primarily due to the inflationary increases on electricity 

(£200k) fuel (£200k), projected workshop cost pressures due to outsourcing of 

specific repairs (£82k), material costs (£200k) required for the maintenance of 

Councils fleet and removal of the salary vacancy factor forecasts (£446k) which is 

proving challenging to achieve due to the use of temporary staff where there are 

key vacancies. The vacancy factor will continue to be monitored throughout the 

remainder of the financial year, with an additional £168k of in year vacancies being 

forecast as at the end of October.  

3.3 A projected net increase from the commercial waste service and an increase in 

interest rates receivable on investments will be used to partially offset the forecasted 

inflationary increases (£400k). 

3.4 Members are reminded that the net cost of budget includes an efficiency saving of 

£500k for the corporate restructure. This will be achieved in 2022/23. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53



Table 2 – General Fund Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2022/23  

Original 
Budget 

2022/23 

Current  

Budget 

2022/23 

Forecast  

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

Forecast 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

Corporate 8,641 8,853 9,437 584 6.6% 

Finance 4,344 4,878 4,856 (22) (0.4%) 

Growth & Culture 6,726 6,721 6,837 116 1.7% 

Housing & Property 1,323 2,893 3,032 139 4.8% 

HRA Recharge (2,787) (2,787) (2,787) 0 0.0% 

Net Cost of Service 18,247 20,558 21,375 817 4.0% 

Investment Income (101) (101) (501) (400) 
 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

291 291 291 0   

Revenue 
Contribution to 
Capital 

55 55 55 0  

Drainage Rates 792 792 792 0  

Depreciation (4,722) (4,722) (4,722) 0   

Net Budget 
Requirement 

14,562 16,873 17,290 417   

Total Funding  (14,564) (14,564) (14,564) 0 
 

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

2 (2,309) (2,468) (159) 

Net Budget Deficit 0 0 258 258  

 

3.5 Table 3 shows the significant forecast variances which impact across all 

directorates for the General Fund revenue for 2022/23 as at 31 October 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

54



Table 3 – General Fund Revenue – Significant Variances 

 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Utilities - Electricity 

Inflationary price increases in line with predicted levels has resulted in a 
forecast over spend. This is being monitored on actual costs during the 
year 

200 

Fuel 

Inflationary price increases has resulted in a forecast over spend based 
on modelling price at £1.45 per litre for the remainder of 22/23. This is 
being monitored on a weekly basis. The budgeted price per litre was £1.10 

200 

Salary vacancy factor 

A reduction in vacant posts across the Council and increases in agency 
provision will have a direct impact on the achievement of the salary 
vacancy factor.  This will continue to be monitored during the year and the 
forecast amended accordingly 

446 

Investment Income 

Base rate increases have resulted in an increase on the interest rates 
available for investments.  The Council is now able to secure interest rates 
above 3% compared with the budgeted rate of 0.5% 

(400) 

 

3.6 Appendix A provides further details of the outturn revenue position for each 

Directorate along with service specific variance comments other than those 

detailed in table 3. 

 

4 General Fund Capital Programme 2022/23 

The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 General Fund Capital 

programme is £19.608m. Table 4 shows the summary of movements: 

Table 4 – General Fund Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of 
Approval 

GF Budget amendment £’000 

  19,608 

March 2022 Changing Places Facilities – Grant award 160 

April 2022 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement – delivery of 
vehicles in March 22 (funding utilised from 22/23) 

(525) 

May 2022 Disabled Facilities Grant- additional award 115 

July 2022 2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 990 

Total  20,348 

55



 

4.1 Table 5 summarises the General Fund Capital forecast outturn position as at 31 

October 2022.  

Table 5 – General Fund Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

 

£’000 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 

 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 

 

% 

Corporate 2,517 2,349 2,339 (10) (0.4%) 

Finance  0 27 27 0 0.0% 

Growth & Culture 13,992 14,059 13,934 (125) (0.9%) 

Housing & 
Property 3,099 3,913 3,274 (639) (16.3%) 

Total Expenditure 19,608 20,348 19,574 (774) (3.8%) 

 

4.2 Table 6 shows the significant forecast variances for the General Fund capital 

schemes for 2022/23 as at 31 October 2022. 

Table 6 – General Fund Capital – Significant Variances 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Shop Front Scheme 

It is anticipated that this year’s programme will be funded from the 
Heritage Action Zone budget. 

(125) 

Welham Street- Resurfacing, Lift & Car Park barriers 

Savings made on lift works due to refined specifications during 
procurement. 

(100) 

Empingham Road S106 Grants 

Until terms and conditions of the S106 monies have been fully met, 
funds cannot be transferred. This is unlikely to occur in 2022/23. 

(298) 

Guildhall Arts Centre – Renovations 

Scheme is now complete and is under budget. 

(35) 

Stamford Arts Centre – Renovations 

The project is no longer proceeding and has been withdrawn as part of 
the budget review. 

(69) 

Decarbonisation Scheme 

The next Salix funding round will take place in March 2023.  A budget 
carry forward into the next financial year will be required to finance 
match funding. 

(183) 

56



Changing Places 

Initial feasibility works have been completed at the Meres Leisure 
Centre & South Street Toilets sites. Designs have been reviewed with 
some amendments proposed, procurement is currently underway. 

46 

 

5 General Fund Reserves 

5.1 Appendix B details the General Fund forecast reserve movements for 2022/23. 

The appendix shows the balances at 31 March 2022 and their projected use for 

the current and future financial years. These reserve projections do not include 

any of the proposed amendments that will be presented to Council on 24 

November 2022.  

6 Revenue Budget 2022/23 – Housing Revenue Account 

The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Revenue Budget 

was £6,116m. The budgeted surplus is fully utilised to fund future investment in 

stock growth and property maintenance. Table 7 shows the summary of 

movements: 

Table 7 – HRA Revenue Budget Adjustments 

Date of Approval HRA Budget amendment £’000 

  (6,116) 

March 2021 Electrical Testing 150 

July 2022 2021/22 Budget carry forwards 200 

July 2022 Earlesfield Project 1,364 

Total  (4,402) 

6.1 Table 8 shows a reduced surplus for the HRA of £4.305m compared to a budgeted 

surplus of £4.402m.   The increased surplus is due to an increase in interest rates 

receivable on investments will be used to partially offset the forecasted inflationary 

increases (£600k).  This is offset by increased repairs and maintenance costs 

(£170k) and removal of the salary vacancy factor forecasts (£136k) which will be 

monitored throughout the remainder of the financial year.   Further details of these 

variances are provided in table 9. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



Table 8 – HRA Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  
£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  

% 

Income (26,512) (26,512) (26,296) 216 0.1% 

Expenditure 18,261 19,975 20,456 481 2.4% 

Net Cost of HRA Services (8,251) (6,537) (5,840) 697 10.7% 

Interest Payable 2,335 2,335 2,335 0  

Investment Income (200) (200) (800) (600)  

Surplus for the year (6,116) (4,402) (4,305) 97  

 

6.2 Table 9 shows the significant forecast variances for the HRA Revenue fund 

schemes for 2022/23 as at 31 October 2022. 

Table 9 – HRA Revenue – Significant Variances 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Repairs & Maintenance 

Compliance works have required an additional £100k of electrical testing, £70k 
of additional costs for compensation payments being made due to disrepair 
claims received by the Council. 

170 

Supervision & Management – General 

There are additional costs of completing a second Tenant Satisfaction survey 
£18k during 2022/23.  

24 

Salary vacancy factor 

A reduction in vacant posts across the Council, an increase in notice periods 
and increases in agency provision will have a direct impact on the 
achievement of the salary vacancy factor.  This will continue to be monitored 
during the year and the forecast amended accordingly. 

136 

  Utilities- Electricity & Gas 

Inflationary price increases in line with predicted levels has resulted in a forecast 
over spend. This is being monitored on actual costs during the year. 

239 

 

Investment Income 

Base rate increases have resulted in an increase on the interest rates available 
for investments.  The Council is now able to secure interest rates over 3% 
compared with the budgeted rate of 0.5%.   

(600) 

 

6.3 Appendix C provides further details of the HRA revenue forecast outturn position. 

 

 

58



 

7 HRA Capital Programme 2022/23 

The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Capital 

programme is £16.353m. Table 10 shows the summary of movements: 

 

Table 10 – HRA Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of Approval GF Budget amendment £’000 

  16,353 

July 2022 2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 2,881 

Total  19,234 

 

Table 11 summarises the HRA Capital forecast outturn position as at 31 October 

2022.  

Table 11 – HRA Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 

Current 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  

% 

Energy Efficiency Initiatives 3,885  4,230 2,000  (2,230)  (52.7%) 

ICT 1,170 1,220 735 (485) (39.8%) 

Repairs Vehicles 178 178 178 0 0.0% 

New Build Programme 3,820 4,120 1,400 (2,720) (66.0%) 

Refurbishment and Improvement 7,300 9,761    5,292 (4,469) (45.8%) 

Total Expenditure 16,353     19,234 9,605 (9,629) (50.0%) 

 

7.1 Table 12 shows the significant forecast variances for the HRA capital schemes for 

2022/23 as at 31 October 2022.   

 

Table 12 – HRA Capital – Significant Variances 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Central Heating, Ventilation and Boilers 

Slippage on this year’s programme will lead to a reduced programme which 
will result in the inflation increases being absorbed in the existing budget. 

(2,230) 

Housing System Enhancements 

The system is forecast to go live in April 2023. Further modules will be 

(485) 

59



delivered over the next 4 years and the in year underspend will be used to 
fund these modules in future years. 

Communal Rooms 

Reduced programme and emphasis on works related to landlord health and 
safety. Strategic review of the communal rooms offer is planned so the 
immediate focus is on compliance work. 

(50) 

Replacement Doors & Windows Programme 

Difficulties with current supplier capacity has led to the need to identify an 
alternative supplier in order to recommence the programme 

(1,087) 

Housing Growth 

Swinegate, Grantham and Elizabeth Road, Stamford expected to start on 
site March 2023. Two further projects at Uplands Drive, Grantham and Larch 
Close, Grantham are currently in the planning stage. This year’s programme 
will also include the acquisition of properties on the open market.  

(2,720) 

Kitchens & Bathrooms Programme 

There is an impact on the contractor delivering the programme due to other 
SK works being prioritised, coupled with contractor staff shortages causing 
capacity issues. This is causing a delay in the programme delivery. 

(1,675) 

Door Entry System 

Review of procurement arrangements to be undertaken therefore a smaller 
improvement scheme is planned for this year. 

(280) 

Exterior Refurbishment 

Significant inflation risk, materials and inflation uplift in contract.  Mitigations 
- Programme to be adjusted. Delay in programmes will affect the energy 
efficiency targets. 

(435) 

Re-wiring 

Due to delays in starting the Earlesfield programme which commenced in 
October, it is not likely that the initial programme will be completed in this 
financial year. It is proposed to carry forward budget for completion in line 
with the project timeline. 

(303) 

Passenger Lifts, Supported Housing Scheme 

Pending contract award, inflation risk but budget provision likely to allow 
containment as tenders lower than anticipated.  Lack of in-house expertise 
in this specialist field has led the Council to engage consultancy to procure 
and manage works. 

(365) 

 

8 HRA Reserves 

8.1 Appendix D details the HRA forecast reserve movements for 2022/23. The 

appendix shows the balances at 31 March 2022 and their projected use for the 

current and future financial years. These reserve projections do not include any 

of the proposed amendments that will be presented to Council on 24 November 

2022.  

 

 

 

60



9 Inflation 

9.1 Since the budgets were prepared last autumn and approved by Council in March 

2022, there has been an unprecedented and completely unforeseen increase in 

inflation and energy costs.  This context along with potential pressures on the 

salary budgets is causing concern that the budget framework for 2022/23 will come 

under pressure as the year progresses. 

9.2 As part of the outturn report, an inflation reserve of £500k was created for the 
General Fund to absorb any potential cost pressures during the current financial 
year.  Whilst this will provide some short-term funding support, there will be a 
funding pressure going into 2023/24 which will need to be considered as part of 
the budget setting process. 

9.3 Fuel 

The combined fuel budget is £690k for 2022/23 (90% General Fund and 10% 

HRA).  Fuel usage is approximately 625,000 litres per annum and the budgeted 

price per litre was set at £1.10.  The latest bulk purchase unit price paid was 

£148.75 and continues to be monitored on a weekly basis.  If the price of fuel 

increases at the same rate for the remainder of the year then there will be a 

pressure of circa £230k for the current financial year and an increased pressure in 

next financial year.   This budgetary pressure is being monitored on a weekly basis 

and any additional budgetary pressures will be reported to this committee at future 

meetings. 

9.4 Utilities 

The General Fund budget for electricity for 2022/23 is £517k which includes a 

budget increase of 17% compared to 2021/22.  The HRA budget for 2022/23 is 

£155k which is an increase of 36% when compared to 2021/22.   The General 

Fund budget for gas for 2022/23 is £70k, an increase of 24% compared to 

2021/22.  The HRA budget is £149k which is an increase of 18% compared to 

2021/22.     

The most recent information (as at October 2022) received from the ESPO 

framework has confirmed the following: 

Electricity Consumption Rates: 

• 100% increase from October 2022 compared to October 2021 

• 10% increase from October 2023 compared to October 2022 

Gas Consumption Rates 

• No increase from April 2022 compared to 2021/22 

• 300% compared for 2023/24 compared to 2022/23  

9.5 There is currently no protection from price increases in 2023/24 which will result in 

significant cost increases when compared to current consumption: 

 

 

61



 

 

 
2021/22 

Outturn 

£ 

2022/23 

Budget 

£ 

2023/24 

Indicative Budget 

£ 

2023/24 Updated 

Projection 

£ 

General Fund 

Electricity 403,000 516,700 554,800 1,653,000 

Gas 50,600 70,000 78,600 227,900 

HRA 

Electricity 176,300 154,800 170,200 629,500 

Gas 104,100 148,600 163,400 499,400 

 

Summary of 2023/24 budget increases (amount above currently budgeted): 

 2023/24  

(£) 

General Fund 1,247,500 

HRA 795,300 

 

9.6 These projected increases relate to the Council only and therefore do not include 

any potential increases that may adversely impact on the Council owned 

companies, specifically EnvironmentSK Ltd and LeisureSK Ltd.   In the event the 

companies are unable to accommodate the additional costs, then the necessary 

representation will be made to the Companies Committee.  

10. Collection Rates 

10.1 Table 13 details the current collection rates against target for 2022/23. 

 Table 13 – Collection Rates 

Target Information  Council Tax Business Rates Rents 

Annual collection rate Target 98.60% Target 98.32% Target 97.35% 

Target collection rate 

to end of October 2022 

65.55% 61.53% 58.54% 

62



Actual collection rate 

to end of October 2022 

64.70% 64.13% 58.08% 

10.2 Council Tax – during the national mourning period in September, there was a 

cessation of recovery activity where reminders or summonses were not issued. 

The current cost of living pressures are resulting in an increased number of DDR 

cancellations causing delays to receipt of payments. 

10.3 Business Rates – the target shown above is a comparison to the October 2021 

position. There is difficulty in measuring this target due to variances in business 

rates over the last 3 years.  

 

11.   Reasons for the Recommendations 

11.1 Committee Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 

Authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 

resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 

Council’s priorities.  Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 

against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action. 

11.2 This report provides an overview of the forecast 2022/23 financial position for the 

Council and focuses on the position as at the end of October 2022. 

 12.  Consultation 

12.1 The Committee requested that regular reports be presented at each Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meeting to ensure members were kept fully 

updated on the financial situation. 

 13.   Background Papers 

13.1 Determination of Budget 2022/23 and indicative budgets for 24/25 – General 

Fund, Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report. 

   http://moderngovsvr/documents/s32627/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf 

  13.2      Provisional Outturn Position 2021/22 report 

 http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%202021

22.pdf 

  13.3      Finance Update – April – August 

Finance Update Report April-August 2022 Report.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk)  

 14.   Appendices 

  14.1   Appendix A – 2022/23 General Fund Significant Variance Analysis 

  14.2   Appendix B – 2022/23 General Fund Reserves  

  14.3   Appendix C – 2022/23 HRA Revenue Summary - Forecast Outturn 

  14.4   Appendix D – 2022/23 HRA Reserves 

  14.5   Appendix E - Finance Risk Register 

63

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s32627/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%20202122.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35707/Finance%20Update%20Report%20April-August%202022%20Report.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

2022/23 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis 

 

Corporate 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Centralised & 
Business 

Support 
467,590 (3,200) 464,390 452,430 (11,960) (2.6%) 

Communications 412,980 (4,300) 408,680 401,946 (6,734) (1.6%) 

Corporate 
Management 

422,762 (1,700) 421,062 448,062 27,000 6.4% 

Human 
Resources 

381,014 (6,950) 374,064 392,964 18,900 5.1% 

Legal & 
Democratic 

1,625,369 (298,400) 1,326,969 1,374,879 47,910 3.6% 

Ops & Public 
Protection 

Management 
108,663 0 108,663 116,263 7,600 7.0% 

Organisation & 
Transformation 

1,080,466 (484,400) 596,066 571,039 (25,027) (4.2%) 

Public Protection 1,538,850 (385,000) 1,153,850 1,169,641 15,791 1.4% 

Waste & Street 
Scene 

6,145,775 (2,147,100) 3,998,675 4,509,725 511,050 12.8% 

Total 12,183,469 (3,331,050) 8,852,419 9,436,949 584,530 6.6% 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

 Legal & Democratic 

Land Charges- Additional search fee costs together with an increase in non-
chargeable personal searches and significant reduction in official searches of 34% 
based on 2021/22 has resulted in a forecast overspend of £65k. This has been 
partially mitigated by in year vacancies of £10k 

48 

Street Scene 

Workshop – A combination of increase in price and quantity of consumables, 
external and specialist repair work in particular on end-of-life vehicles has resulted in 
a current forecast overspend of £282k. The other budget variances are referenced 
within the main body of the report. 

Commercial Waste - Additional sales value has been achieved as a result of in year 
price increases and continuing growth in the customer base 

511 

 

 

65



 

 

Finance 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Finance 2,850,997 (135,550) 2,715,447 2,705,765 (9,682) (0.4%) 

Finance 
Management 130,203 (16,350) 113,853 121,053 7,200 6.3% 

ICT Services 1,814,010 (40,550) 1,773,460 1,778,338 4,878 0.3% 

Revenues, 
Benefits & 
Customer 
Services 20,290,786 (20,016,950) 273,836 250,786 (23,050) (8.4%) 

TOTAL 25,085,996 (20,209,400) 4,876,596 4,855,942 (20,654) (0.4%) 
 
 

 

 

Growth & Culture 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Arts & Culture 2,644,597 (1,223,050) 1,421,547 1,459,347 37,800 2.7% 

Building Control 941,077 (833,593) 107,484 105,344 (2,140) (2.0%) 

Community 
Engagement 274,646 (28,000) 246,646 247,900 1,254 0.5% 

Culture & 
Leisure Mgmt 323,853 0 323,853 334,600 10,747 3.3% 

Development & 
Policy 1,736,500 (1,428,100) 308,400 343,800 35,400 11.5% 

Growth 
Management 217,387 0 217,387 245,287 27,900 12.8% 

Investsk 890,512 (483,994) 406,518 406,518 0  0.0% 

Leisure 3,044,500 (150,350) 2,894,150 2,886,550 (7,600) (0.3%) 

Parks & Open 
Spaces 917,300 (122,250) 795,050 807,750 12,700 1.6% 

66



Total 10,990,372 (4,269,337) 6,721,035 6,837,096 116,061 1.7% 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Arts Centres 

There is a net loss of income following a reduced programme for films and workshops 
across the centres and live shows at the Meres leisure centre. The cost of casual 
employees have been reduced in line with the current programme which is under 
review by the service area  

Festivals - The programme is currently under review so no further expenditure has 
been committed in 2022/23, resulting in an under spend (£30k) 

38 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing & Property 

Service 
Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

Forecast 
Variance  

 

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Health & 
Safety 116,200 0 116,200 119,300 3,100 2.7% 

Housing 
Services 1,260,805 (737,705) 523,100 557,100 34,000 6.5% 

Property 
Services 4,788,903 (2,814,150) 1,974,753 2,076,470 101,717 5.2% 

Waste 
Depot 279,000 0 279,000 279,000 0  0.0% 

TOTAL 6,444,908 (3,551,855) 2,893,053 3,031,870 138,817 4.8% 
 
 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Car Parks 

Operating costs and lower than budgeted usage across a number of car parks has 
resulted in a forecast variance 

26 

 

67



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

2022/23 - 2024/25 General Fund Reserves Statement

 

Balance at 

31 March 

2022

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance at 

31 March 

2023

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance at 

31 March 

2024

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance at 

31 March 

2025

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast 

Balance 

at 31 

March 

2026

Discretionary Reserves

1 Climate Change 31 (31) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Commercial 250 (250) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Training and Development 15 0 15 0 15 0 15 0 15

4 Street Scene 117 (81) 36 0 36 0 36 0 36

5 ICT investment 500 (206) 294 0 294 0 294 0 294

6 Economic Development & Growth 32 (32) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 Local Priorities Reserve 6,999 (2,542) 4,457 (565) 3,892 (1,480) 2,412 100 2,512

8 Invest to Save 809 (160) 649 0 649 0 649 0 649

9 Housing Delivery 1,797 0 1,797 0 1,797 0 1,797 0 1,797

10 Property Maintenance 113 387 500 0 500 0 500 0 500

11 Regeneration 1,085 (267) 818 (227) 591 (5) 586 (125) 461

11,748 (3,182) 8,566 (792) 7,774 (1,485) 6,289 (25) 6,264

Governance Reserves

12 Insurance Reserve 211 0 211 0 211 0 211 0 211

13 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 308 (33) 275 (33) 242 (33) 209 (33) 176

14 Budget Stabilisation 4,531 (1,627) 2,904 0 2,904 0 2,904 0 2,904

15 Section 31 Grant Reserve 3,730 (3,730) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

16 Rev Grants Carried Forwards 549 0 549 0 549 0 549 0 549

17 Building Control 76 (40) 36 (31) 5 (28) (23) (29) (52)

18 Football 3G Pitch 125 25 150 25 175 25 200 25 225

19 Special Expense Area Reserve 366 (110) 256 101 357 105 462 0 462

20 Inflation Reserve 500 0 500 0 500 0 500 0 500

10,397 (5,515) 4,882 62 4,944 69 5,013 (37) 4,976

22 Total General Revenue Reserves 22,145 (8,697) 13,448 (730) 12,718 (1,416) 11,302 (62) 11,240

Homelessness 257 (157) 100 0 100 0 100 0 100

New Burdens Grant 368 0 368 0 368 0 368 0 368

Neighbourhood Planning Grant 37 0 37 0 37 0 37 0 37

Individual Electoral Registration 82 (82) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Historic England 44 0 44 (44) 0 0 0 0 0

Grantham Growth 69 0 69 (69) (0) 0 (0) 0 (0)

Welfare Reform 177 0 177 0 177 0 177 0 177

Blue Green Corridor 97 (73) 24 0 24 0 24 0 24

23 Government Grants Received 1,131 (312) 819 (113) 706 0 706 0 706

24 Working Balance 2,010 (46) 1,964 0 1,964 0 1,964 0 1,964

25 Total Revenue Reserves 25,285 (9,055) 16,230 (843) 15,387 (1,416) 13,971 (62) 13,909

26 Capital Reserve

27 LAMS Reserve 18 0 18 (18) 0 0 0 0 0

28 General Fund Capital Reserve 155 (114) 41 18 59 0 59 0 59

29 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 2,452 (310) 2,142 2,322 4,464 6,181 10,645 0 10,645

30 Total Capital Reserves 2,625 (424) 2,201 2,322 4,523 6,181 10,704 0 10,704

31 Total General Fund Reserves 27,910 (9,479) 18,431 1,479 19,910 4,765 24,675 (62) 24,613

69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

 
Housing Revenue Account Summary 2022/23  

 

Description 
2022/23 
 Original 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Income         

Dwelling Rents (25,399) (25,399) (25,229) 170 

Non-Dwelling Rents (332) (332) (308) 24 

Charges for Services and 
Facilities 

(715) (715) (708) 7 

Other Income (66) (66) (51) 15 

Total Income (26,512) (26,512) (26,296) 216 

          

Expenditure         

Repairs and Maintenance 7,435  8,767 9,208 441 

Supervision and 
Management - General 

2,032 2,406 2,456 50 

Supervision and 
Management - Special 

1,405 1,413 1,403 (10) 

Depreciation and 
Impairment of Fixed 
Assets 

3,828 3,828 3,828  0    

Debt Management 
Expenses 

 35   35   35   0   

Provision for bad debts  383   383   383   0    

Other Expenditure 
(Pension Deficit) 

356 356 356  0  

Support recharge from 
General Fund 

2,787 2,787 2,787  0    

 Total Expenditure 18,261 19,975 20,456 481 
     

Net Cost of HRA 
Services 

(8,251) (6,537) (5,840) 677 

Interest Payable and 
Similar Charges 

2,335 2,335 2,335 0  

Interest and Investment 
Income 

(200) (200) (800) (600) 

     

Surplus for the year (6,116) (4,402) (4,305) 97  

 

 

 

 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



2022/23 - 2025/26

HRA Reserves Statement
Appendix D

Balance 

as at 31 

March 

2022

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance 

as at 31 

March 

2023

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance 

as at 31 

March 

2024

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance 

as at 31 

March 

2025

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance 

as at 31 

March 

2026

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

Revenue Reserves

1 HRA Improvement Reserve 2,006 (720) 1,286 0 1,286 0 1,286 0 1,286

2 Property Development Reserve 13,522 0 13,522 0 13,522 0 13,522 0 13,522

3 Residents Involvement 30 0 30 0 30 0 30 0 30

4 Working Balance 1,731 297 2,028 (527) 1,501 (383) 1,118 (192) 926

5 Total HRA Revenue Reserves 17,289 (423) 16,866 (527) 16,339 (383) 15,956 (192) 15,764

HRA Capital Reserve

6 HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 8,925 2,329 11,254 457 11,711 690 12,401 3,500 15,901

7 Major Repairs Reserve 18,527 (285) 18,242 (2,660) 15,582 (1,047) 14,535 164 14,699

8 Total HRA Capital Reserves 27,452 2,044 29,496 (2,203) 27,293 (357) 26,936 3,664 30,600

9 Total HRA Reserves 44,741 1,621 46,362 (2,730) 43,632 (740) 42,892 3,472 46,364

73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D – Finance Risk Register 
 

Risk 
Likeli-
hood 

Impact 

Residual 
Risk 

Score 
Mitigating Action 

1. Increase in borrowing interest 
rates 

3 3 9 
High 

Interest rates are continually monitored as they increased to an average of 3% 
compared to a budgeted assumption of 0.5%.  This has a positive impact on the 
investment income received although should the Council consider external borrowing 
then there is now an additional resource pressure as borrowing rates have increased 
significantly since April 2022.  

2. Capital programmes requiring 
borrowing in the medium term  

4 3 12 
Very High 

Continue to undertake financial modelling to identify consequences of undertaking 
borrowing and align this with savings that will need to be approved before borrowing is 
undertaken in order to ensure ongoing affordability and financial sustainability. 
Reprofiling of the capital programme will be considered as part of the options appraisal. 

3. Lack of clarity for funding levels 
from 2023/24 and beyond  

3 3 9 
High 

Although a two year settlement was expected, the Government has not yet made any 
announcements.  Any changes to the assumed levels will need to be modelled to 
assess their impact. 

4. Fluctuation in business rates 
2 2 4 

Medium 

The economic impact of the pandemic is yet to be fully determined which may have an 
adverse impact on the business rate base.  Monthly reviews are in place to assess any 
adverse impact on the collectible amount.  

5. Increase in bad debts as a result 
of economic circumstances 

3 2 6 
High The Council has pro-active debt management procedures in place. 

6. Increased maintenance costs of 
fixed assets 

3 2 6 
High 

The budget proposals for 2022/23 propose a significant increase in the maintenance 
budgets for both leisure centres (£150k pa) and one-off budget of £400k.  The medium 
term outlook is a continuation of high levels of maintenance that will require financing  

7. Inflation increases beyond 
budgeted levels  

4 3 12 
Very High 

Budget assumptions kept up to date with most recent projections and monthly 
sensitivity analysis is produced to monitor the impact of inflationary increases. 

8. Fee Income volatility 2 2 4 
Medium Early monitoring of deviations and regular reporting to both budget holders and members. 

9. Fuel and utility price volatility  4 3 12 
Very High 

Weekly monitoring of fuel charge and proactive interventions to ensure optimisation of 
fuel consumption.  Utility cost increases will continue to have an adverse impact on the 
Council finances.    

75



10. Inadequate capital resources to 
finance future desired plans 

3 3 9 
High 

Asset disposal programme approved and pipeline of asset disposal in progress in order 
to generate capital receipts.  

 
  

76



 

 
 

77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 

22nd November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke 
                The Leader of the Council 
 
 

 

 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 

2022/23 Mid-Year Report 

Report Author 

Robert Warburton, Performance Analyst 

  Robert.warburton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

This Mid-Year update report outlines South Kesteven District Councils performance 

against the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for the year of 2022/23. 

 

 

Recommendations To The Committee 

1. Note the contents of the 2022/23 Mid-Year performance report. 

2. Members to consider if any concerns highlighted by the report require 
additional investigation to be added to the work programme. 

 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

Healthy and strong communities 

79

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Clean and sustainable environment 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The financial considerations where appropriate are referenced throughout this 

report. 

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 Regular reporting on agreed actions and measures is to be welcomed from a 

governance point of view, as it provides a transparent mechanism for reporting on 

performance. 

1.3 Alan Robinson, Monitoring Officer  

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 

October 2020. It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance 

indicators (KPIs) and targets would be developed by the relevant overview 

and scrutiny committee, which would retain oversight of the performance 

management arrangements at a strategic level. These actions and indicators 

were presented to this committee and agreed on 17 November 2020. 

2.2 The Year End report for 2021/22 was presented to the Committee on 19 July 

2022 and outlined the performance against the Corporate Plan for the 

previous financial year.  

2.3 This report builds on these historical reports to provide an update on 

performance to the mid-year point of the 2022/23 financial year. It 

incorporates the changes recommended by the last KPI review to outline 

areas of the council’s performance which are successful and to advise where 

challenges may lay. From these results this committee may need to pay 

additional attention either through questions to senior officers during the 

80



session or more detailed investigations to be added to the committee work 

programme. 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Appendix 1 outlines the overall performance against the 15 actions being 

presented in this session, as well as specific performance against the sub 

measures contained within those. Specific commentary is provided for each 

action, but the summary is as follows:  

1. 11 of the actions are rated Green. These are actions which are 

on or above target as planned.  

2. 3 actions are rated as Amber, these are those off target by less 

than 10% or where milestone achievement is delayed but with 

resolution in place to be achieved within a reasonable timeframe.  

3. 0 actions are rated Red. These are those falling significantly 

below target or overdue with no specific resolution date planned. 

4. 1 action is listed as unreportable as the action is currently under 

review and an update will be presented as part of the year end 

reporting process. 

 

3.2 There have been no areas of significant under performance identified in this 

report. There is commentary for each of the KPIs with an appropriate update 

from each area.  

 

4. Appendices 
 

4.1 Appendix 1 - FEDCS Mid-Year KPI Report 2022-23 

 

 

 

81



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

FEDCS Performance Targets 

Priority No: Ac on: Status: 

Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 1 Delivery of the St Martins Park development scheme in Stamford.  
 

Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 2A 
Regeneration of Grantham town centre, supported by the Future High Street 

(FHSF) bid and delivery of the Heritage Action Zone programme (HAZ).  

 

Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 2B 
Regeneration of Grantham town centre, supported by the Future High Street 

(FHSF) bid and delivery of the Heritage Action Zone programme (HAZ).  

 

Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 3 
Identify funding & other opportunities to support the development of the 
town centres of Bourne, The Deepings and Stamford, and apply lessons 

learnt from the Future High Street Fund & other initiatives.  

 

Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 4 
Develop a package of measures to support the recovery of the local econo-

my to safeguard local jobs wherever possible.  

 

Delivery of Growth of Our Economy  6 
Continue to attract investment and encourage diverse businesses to the 

District and ensure appropriate land and property is available.  

 

A Clean and Sustainable Environment  
9 

Build a new, modern depot which is fit for the future.  
 

83



Page 4 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

Priority No: Ac on: Status: 

A High Performing Council 3 Constitution fully reviewed and adopted by Council 

 

A High Performing Council 4 
Implement the findings of the Governance review across the Councils      

assets (including companies). 

 

A High Performing Council 5 
Develop a People Strategy to support the retention and attraction of high 

quality staff. 

 

A High Performing Council 8 
Support the implementation of an IT investment roadmap to align future so-

lutions with the Councils ambitions.  

 

A High Performing Council 10 Deliver the ambitions of the Customer Experience Strategy.  
 

A High Performing Council 12 Undertake an Asset Management Review.  
 

A High Performing Council 13 
Ensure that support packages are in place for ensuring the welfare of the 

districts most vulnerable residents and to enable small businesses to flour-
ish in the district. 

 

Healthy and Strong Communities 1 Invest in sustainable, high quality leisure facilities across the district.  

 

84



Page 5 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 1 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Delivery of the St Martins Park development scheme in Stamford. 

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth and Director of 

Growth and Culture   
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Secure the redevelopment of the Cummins site to develop new employment opportunities and much needed for 
homes for Stamford in a high-quality setting   

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 
Outline Planning Consent 
granted 

Q3 2021/22 Year End Complete 
       

S106 Agreements in place Q4 2021/22 Year End Complete 
    

Budget Approval for       
demolition costs approved 

Q3 2021/22 Year End Approved 
    

Demolition complete Q2 2022/23 Year End On Target 
    

Sale contracts exchanged 
and completed 

End of 2022/23 Year End Ongoing 
    

Commentary : Demolition works began on site in April 22 and due to be completed in November 22. The contract with GF Tomlinson was re-
viewed by the FEDCS on the 27th September where the client reports and management of the project was discussed. The report showed an 
overspend on the contract of £192k due to no contingency being included in the £1.303m sum. A subsequent report to Cabinet in October 
sought approval for the overspend and it is due to be considered by Council on the 24th November.  

The remediation strategy is being costed and budget for this also due to be requested at Council on the 24th November. The remediation 
works ensure that the site is clear of any contamination and a requirement from the developer parties prior to completion of the sales contracts.  

Current     
Status   

85



Page 6 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 2a 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : 
Regeneration of Grantham town centre, supported by the Future High Street (FHSF) bid and delivery of the Heritage Action Zone 

programme (HAZ). 

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth and Director of 

Growth and Culture   
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Delivery of approved HAZ scheme in partnership with Historic England; secure Future High Streets Funding  

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

HAZ: amount of public sector 
grant spent  

 £371,000 Year End  £17,852 
        

HAZ: amount of private    
sector investment leveraged  

£45,000 Year End £0 
    

HAZ: number of buildings 
improved  

2 'Key building 
projects  

Year End 0 
    

HAZ: number of buildings 
improved  

5 'Shopfront ' 
Grant projects 

Year End 0 
    

Commentary: While no key building projects have yet been completed  this year, one major project is in active development - The Westgate 
Hall project continues to progress and will soon be going out to tender. By way of background In July 2022, Cabinet recommended to Historic 
England an allocation of £300,000 from the HSHAZ programme to support the regeneration of the Grade II listed building known as Westgate 
Hall. Westgate Hall in Westgate has already been renovated externally, with the stonework now looking good as new. The building is of signifi-
cant architectural importance to Grantham, having been constructed in 1852 and previously used as a corn exchange. Once renovated the 
building will be re-opened as a high end bar and restaurant. 

Also due for completion this year is 71 High Street (currently home to the community service provider We Are With You) is a former Burtons 
building which was built in 1936, one of only two art-deco period buildings in Grantham town centre. The project is restoring a frontage as simi-
lar as possible to the original 1930’s design, which includes black granite cladding of the facia and stall riser (above and below the windows).  

 

Current     
Status  

Q2 2022/23 

86



Page 7 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 2b 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : 
Regeneration of Grantham town centre, supported by the Future High Street (FHSF) bid and delivery of the Heritage Action Zone 

programme (HAZ). 

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth and Director of 

Growth and Culture   
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Delivery of approved HAZ scheme in partnership with Historic England; secure Future High Streets Funding  

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

FHSF secured from the       
Department for Levelling up, 

Housing & Communities 
£1.16m Year End  N/A 

        

FHSF: amount of FHSF       
co-funding secured  

£929,000 
(2023/24) 

Year End £0 
    

FHSF: amount of vacant 
space converted  - Upper 

Floor Conversions 
8 Year End 0 

    
Commentary: Overall this a £5.6m regeneration programme aimed at delivering infrastructure investment projects in Grantham which will re-
sult in (a) improved pedestrian and cycling access between Grantham Railway Station and the town centre (b) market place public realm im-
provements (to create an open event space as a focal point in the town) and (c) delivery of a grant programme to support the conversion of 22 
unused and underutilised upper floor retail space to residential accommodation. A Town Team is being established to help promote and pro-

vide leadership on the future of Grantham. On 21 November 2022, a Grantham Engagement Manager commences in post.    

21 out of 22 grants have been approved to proceed to Full Application following the Expressions of Interest phase. The private match funding 
contribution to these grants is estimated by the applicants to be £986,900. Applicants are now developing their Full Applications which includes 
applying for Planning Permission and getting quoted costings for the individual schemes. It is envisaged that the co-funding will start to be real-
ised into Q4.  

Current     
Status  

Q2 2022/23 

87



Page 8 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 3 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Identify funding & other opportunities to support the development of the town centres of Bourne, The Deepings and Stamford, 
and apply lessons learnt from the Future High Street Fund & other initiatives.  

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth and Director of 

Growth and Culture   
Measured : 6 Monthly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Historic and Regeneration funding secured for locally supported, targeted, schemes in The Deepings, Bourne 
and Stamford.  

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Deliver an economic         
development plan 

April 2023 Year End - 
    

Commentary : Following the successful transfer of the economic development function into the Growth and Culture Directorate a Service Plan 
has now been approved and the team will work to deliver against this plan going forward.  

The next stage in the process is to bring forward a new South Kesteven District Council Economic Development Strategy 2023– 2028. The first 
draft of which has been completed and will be shared with senior colleagues and members at FEDCO Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
22nd November 2022.  

The strategy is due to be adopted from 1st April 2023 and will be the blueprint for economic development activity across the District over the 5 
year period. 

During the next quarter the team will be engaging with partners, stakeholders, members and Council colleagues and seeking  feedback on the 
content of the strategy and the economic development ‘visions’ that we have identified in order to grow a robust and resilient South Kesteven 
economy. 

 

Current     
Status    88



Page 9 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 4 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Develop a package of measures to support the recovery of the local economy to safeguard local jobs wherever possible.  

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth and Director of 

Growth and Culture   
Measured : Six Monthly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

One Team approach across the Council, InvestSK and other public and private sector agencies to provide South 
Kesteven's businesses with accessible and relevant support.  

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Number of businesses    
supported  

 60 businesses 
receiving direct 

support 
Year End  83 

        

Safeguard Jobs in South 
Kesteven through retention 

of businesses 
100 jobs  Year End Achieved 

    

Inward investors directly 
supported to relocate into 

the district 
2  Year End 5 

    
Commentary: The Economic Development Team continues to engage with and support a number of businesses across many sectors. 
Through embedding our role into the wider business support networks across the District we have been able to reach a great number of busi-
nesses and ensure the relevant support, advice and guidance is readily accessible.  

In addition to the figures reported here we have also through the release of the HelloSK App seen 170 local businesses sign up to the App and 
are now promoting their business offer to over 600 local residents that have also subscribed to HelloSK. 

During the last quarter and specifically identifying within the inward investment measure we have supported a further 2 businesses to expand 
their operation into the District bringing the total for the year to date up to 5. 

Current     
Status  

89



Page 10 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Delivery of Growth of Our Economy 6 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Continue to attract investment and encourage diverse businesses to the District and ensure appropriate land and property is 
available. 

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth and Director of 

Growth and Culture   
Measured : 6 Monthly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

New businesses attracted to the district utilising existing building stock and bringing allocated employment land to 
market  

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History Current     

Status  Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 
Local Plan Policy E1:     
Grantham Southern      
Gateway (118.9ha)  

12.47ha 
    

Local Plan Policy E2:     
Strategic Emp. Sites 

(40.81ha across 4 sites) 
2.73ha 

        

Local Plan Policy E3: Emp. 
Allocations (20.2ha across 5 

1ha 
    

Commentary: E1 Committed land - 91,713sqm (B1,B2,B8 use) Other employment generating uses = 33,029sqm 

E2 Committed land - 27,336.6sqm (B1,B2,B8 use) 

E2 Committed land - 10,000sqm (B1,B2,B8 use) 

The Local Plan includes allocated employment sites (Local Plan policies E1-E3) totalling 179.91ha. There is no Local Plan target for annual     
completion of employment land. The allocated employment sites are to be delivered by the end of the Local Plan period 2035/2036.  

There continues to be greater joined up working between planning policy (as the primary drivers of the Local Plan) and the economic                 
development team as the main promoters of Place across the District. Meetings have been held between Planning Policy, Economic Develop-
ment and prospective new inward investors, developers and operators looking to secure land within the new Local Plan in order to create         
employment opportunities, particularly along the A1 corridor.  

No annual target— committed 
land and completions will be re-

ported. 

90



Page 11 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : A Clean & Sustainable Environment 9 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Build a new, modern depot which is fit for the future.  

Responsible Post : The Cabinet Member for Housing & Property and Chief Finance Officer  Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : Delivery of a new depot.  

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Construction Completion 2023/34 Year End Dependent on 
Above          

Commentary : The replacement depot designs have been paused whilst work is completed on fleet procurement and a route review which 
could impact on the future design of the building. This item was discussed at the previous meeting of Environment Overview and Scrutiny. 

Budget was approved on 12th July 2022 for £245k for civils works to commence to clear the Turnpike Close site ahead of any construction 
works on site. A contractor (Cawardens) have been appointed and commenced work on the 17th October 2022 and are due to complete before      
Christmas 22.  

Cabinet approved this two staged approach to the site which enables it ready for development whilst the fleet procurement and route review 
works are undertaken. Once these conclude the design works can recommence to ensure the design is fit for purpose and maximises the site 
and includes the growth in the District. It is anticipated that the construction budget will be sought in 2022/2023 but may slip into 2023/2024  
depending on the other factors mentioned.  

Current     
Status 

Construction commenced Q4 2022/23 Year End Dependent on 
Above     

Planning application        
submission and approval 

Q4 2022/23 Year End Ongoing 
    

Procurement Q4 2022/23 Year End Dependent on 
Above     

Design and costs approval Q4 2022/23 Year End Ongoing     

Budget approval Q4 2022/23 Year End Ongoing     

91



12 

   Action Complete 

KPI ID : A High Performing Council 3 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Undertake a Constitution review and implement outcomes. 

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing and Deputy 

Chief Executive  
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : Constitution fully reviewed and adopted by Council 

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Current     
Status Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Constitution reviewed and 
adopted 

Q1 2022/23 Quarterly Complete 

    
Commentary : A revised Constitution was adopted by the Council on 26 May 2022 following a comprehensive review of the document.           The 
action within the Corporate Plan has therefore been completed. 

The Constitution is a living document and will continue to be reviewed, at least annually, and amended as necessary. 

As it is complete this particular action will be removed from future reports, new performance measures will be considered as part of the corporate 
plan refresh. 

 

 

92



13 

   Action Complete 

KPI ID : 
A High performing Council 4 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Implement the findings of the Governance review across the Councils assets (including companies). 

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing and Deputy 

Chief Executive  
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Governance Review action plan and milestones in place and complete 

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Governance Review action 
plan Completion 

TBC Six Monthly Complete 
    

Commentary : A report recommending the closure of the governance review was presented to Committee in April 2022 following completion of 
the implementation plan. The Committee accepted the closure report associated with the Governance Review. The LGA Corporate Peer Chal-
lenge has been held subsequently and an six-month update on progress against the Peer Review Action Plan will take place in September 2022. 

As it is complete this particular action will be removed from future reports, new performance measures will be considered as part of the corporate 
plan refresh. 

 

 

Current     
Status  

93



14 

   Action Complete 

KPI ID : A High performing Council 5 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Develop a People Strategy (including a pay review) to support the retention and attraction of high quality staff. 

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities and Deputy Chief  Ex-

ecutive  
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

To have adopted People Strategy, with an agreed action plan, with SMART targets and progress being made 
against them, ensuring the right skills are available to support the ambitions of the Council 

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Deliver a new People     
Strategy 

2021/22 Year End  
    

Number of apprenticeships 
provided by the Council  

10  Year End 10 
    

Commentary :  

People Strategy developed and signed off. Deployment of actions in line with the strategy is ongoing. 

As the People Strategy has been developed this action will be marked as complete and removed from future reports, new actions to monitor per-
formance will be considered and added as necessary as part of the corporate plan refresh taking place over the next year.  

We have had a number of apprentices complete their qualifications since the last quarter, but we have some new apprentices that have started 
and we are looking at recruiting for some more apprenticeship roles over the next quarter. 

Current     
Status  

94



15 

   Action Complete 

KPI ID : A High Performing Council 8 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Support the implementation of an IT investment roadmap to align future solutions with the Councils ambitions.  

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth and Chief          

Finance Officer  
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : Agreed roadmap in place outlining the process for achieving modern, sustainable and reliable IT provision  

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Current     
Status Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

IT Road map 
Put a road map 

in place 
2021/22  Year End 

        
Commentary : A draft of the 2022 - 20225 ICT Strategy was presented to committee on 27/09/2022 outlining and requesting feedback on the 
strategy that will be in place for the next few years. The Strategy has been supported by an updated Cyber Security Action Plan. 

Now that the strategy is close to being finalised this action will need to be reviewed to determine appropriate performance monitoring targets     
going forwards which can be tied in to the corporate plan refresh.  

 

 

95



Page 16 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : A High Performing Council 10 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Deliver the ambitions of the Customer Experience Strategy.  

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for People & Safer Communities and Chief Finance    

Officer 
Measured : 6 Monthly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Improvement of customer experience and regular refreshment of the customer experience strategy to incorporate  
technology, accommodation and customer behaviour. 

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

 % Action Plan completed  TBC Year End   

        
Commentary: The customer experience strategy is currently being reviewed by the Head of Service and Manager. A revised Strategy and      
supporting action plan will be developed in response to changes in customer contacts since the Pandemic and the resulting temporary closure 
of the Customer service Centres. This has accelerated the way customers wish to contact and interact with the Council and has resulted in an      
increase in demand for on-line services and accessing services at times convenient to the customer. 

 

 

 

Current     
Status 

96



17 

   Action Complete 

KPI ID : A High Performing Council 12 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Undertake an Asset Management Review.  

Responsible Post : 
The Cabinet Member for Housing & Property and Director of Housing and Prop-

erty  
Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

Review of all of the Council's non-HRA assets in order to assist on a considered programme of disposal,          in-
vestment and acquisition  

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Current     
Status Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Adopt a new asset         man-
agement strategy 

Q1 2022/23 Quarterly   

        
Commentary : The Asset Management Strategy was presented to Cabinet on 22/09/2022 for approval and adoption of the Corporate Asset Man-
agement Strategy 2022 – 2027. 

Much like the draft ICT Strategy this action will need to be reviewed to determine appropriate performance monitoring targets going forwards 
which can be tied in to the corporate plan refresh.  

 

 

97



Page 18 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : 
A High Performing Council 13 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : 
Ensure that support packages are in place for ensuring the welfare of the districts most vulnerable residents and to enable small 
businesses to flourish in the district. 

Responsible Post : The Cabinet Member for Finance and Assistant Director of Finance Measured : Quarterly 

What does Success Look 
Like : 

SKDC taking proactive action to support our most vulnerable residents 

Measure  Target  Target Period  Achieved  
Status History 

Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Discretionary payments 
awarded 

£38,815 Quarterly £16,209          

Discretionary Housing Pay-
ments awarded 

£155,861 Quarterly £85,206     

Business Rates Retail Relief 
awarded 

- Quarterly £3,714,981     

Commentary : With respect to discretionary payments, 42% has been allocated with a remaining amount of £22,606 to be allocated in Q3 and 
Q4. Similarly with Discretionary Housing Payments this value is awarded and committed to 31.03.22.  This is 54.67% of allocation with a re-
maining amount of £70,655 to be allocated in Q3 and Q4. 

Business Rates Retail Relief has been awarded to 583 eligible businesses to provide financial support for the current financial year. 

The Household Support fund is split between - £262,900 pensioners in receipt of pension credit and £66,800 for other households (mix of 
working / pension - with / without children).  This is targeted support is designed to provide financial support for those most in need. 

Current     
Status  

Household Support Fund  - Year End £329,700     

98



Page 19 

Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 Quarter 2 

KPI ID : Healthy And Strong Communities 1 

Status : 
Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 Q2 2022/23 

        

Action : Invest in sustainable, high quality leisure facilities across the district.  

Responsible Post : The Cabinet Member for Leisure and Director of Growth and Culture Measured : 6 Monthly 

What does Success Look 
Like : Agreement of a programme of new-build and refurbished leisure centres meeting the needs of the district.  

Measure Target Target Period Achieved 
Status History 

Current     
Status Q3 2021/22 Q4 2021/22 Q1 2022/23 

Decision on leisure           
programme  

Assess the   
leisure facilities 

within the      
district and 

Identify        
programme of 
improvement  

End of 
2021/22 

Ongoing  

        
Commentary : Full condition surveys have been carried out on the leisure centres in Bourne, Grantham (including the stadium) and          
Stamford. All works which will be required over a 30 year period have to identified and categorised between A (in good condition) and D (end of 
life or health and safety). The category D items are all being addressed, with works either already carried out or orders placed. The leisure 
team are  continuing to work with the property team to assess the repair and maintenance items identified and are now looking to address    
category C items. 

99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

22 November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 

 

 

Telephony system call handling performance 
 

Report Author 

Claire Moses, Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service 

  01476 406210 ext. 6484 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This is an update for Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee regarding the current position for call handling and customer 

contact within the Customer Service team and high contact service areas.   

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Notes the report and action plan and are invited to ask questions relating 
to the report and supporting documents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

101

Agenda Item 11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are currently no Financial or Procurement implications to this report.  This 

will be reviewed as the forward action plan progresses. 

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer and s151 Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are currently no legal or governance implications to this report.  This will be 

reviewed as the forward action plan progresses. 

 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Human Resources 

 

1.3 There are currently no Financial or Procurement implication to this report.  This 

will be reviewed as the forward action plan progresses. 

 

Completed by Fran Beckitt, Human Resource Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

102



2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  At the meeting of this Committee on 27 September 2022, an action was requested 

for the Committee to receive recent data on the calls handled within the Customer 

Service telephony system. 

 

2.2 This report provides current calls handling performance to 31 October 2022 and 

forward plan actions relating to Customer Service and telephony solutions. 

 

 

Call Handling Performance for high volume areas 

 

2.3 The report provides analysis of call handling from January 2022 through to 

October 2022 for high volume service areas (where calls go into an agent queue) 

– which are: 

• Allocations and Tenancy Services – lettings 

• Housing Improvements and Repairs 

• Customer Services – including: 

o Benefits - Processing 

o Benefits – Overpayments 

o Council Tax Billing 

o Housing Register 

o Switchboard 

• Revenues 

o Business Rates 

o Enforcement  

o Rents (internal queue only) 

• Elections 

• Street Scene, Green and Trade Waste Team (internal queue only) – this is 

a new queue for reporting since 3 October 2022. 

2.4 Statistics are produced and issued by the Customer Service Co-Ordinator on a 

weekly and monthly basis to the relevant service areas.  The information includes 

number of calls offered, handled, abandoned, average speed of answer and FTE 

time for call handling.  

 

2.5 In addition, since 30 May 2022, the Customer Service Co-Ordinator has requested 

commentary from all service areas regarding any factors which could impact call 

handling. 

 

2.6 Currently, the service areas detailed in paragraph 2.3 are averaging call 

answering of 79%. 

 

2.7 The table below shows the total calls offered (total received), handled (total 

answered), and abandoned (total). 

 

103



  

  Handled Abandoned 

Period Offered Number % of 
offered 

Number % of 
offered 

October 2022 18,923 14,847 79% 4,076 21% 

Quarter 2 – 22/23 20,111 14,327 71% 5,783 29% 

Quarter 1 – 22/23 23,244 18,119 78% 5,129 22% 

Quarter 4 – 22/23 22,957 18,778 82% 4,179 18% 

 

2.8 The differences in number of calls offered can be aligned to the customer peaks 

and troughs throughout the year.   

• Quarter 1 and 4 do see the highest level of customer contact due to 

significant activity during these months, which include: 

o Green waste enquiries – 7,654 (average over 3 years) 

o Issuing of over 65,000 Council Tax bills 

o Issuing over 6,500 Business Rates bills 

o Issuing over 7,000 rent increase letters 

o Issuing over 10,000 Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support letters  

• During Quarter 2, the Customer Service Team saw a reduction in staffing 

and took on the call handing for two additional service areas – Council Tax 

and Benefits (not including complex calls)  

• Since April 2022 over 54,000 Council Tax Energy Rebate payments have 

been made.  There has been significant email and telephone contact 

resulting in this funding 

• October has seen the recruitment of 5.27 full time equivalents into the 

Customer Service Team.  This is to replace vacant posts within the team 

and to ensure adequate resources for the additional service area contacts.  

The new members of the team have received training during October, and 

this has been very successful.  The training is ongoing and will take time for 

them to learn all 16 service areas. 

  

 

 

Calls handled by the Customer Service Team 

 

2.9 It is not widely understood just how many service areas the Customer Service 

team handle calls for – a total of 16 service areas. 

 

2.10 The Customer Service Advisers are multi-skilled in the service areas and will 

answer and handle calls in various queues throughout the day.  The service areas 

where the Customer Service Team handle calls are: 

• Benefits – Processing 

• Benefits – Overpayments 

• Box Office 

• Council Tax Billing 

• DC (Planning) 

104



• Environmental Health and Neighbourhoods 

• Green Bins 

• Grounds Maintenance 

• Homelessness 

• Housing Register 

• Land Charges 

• Payments 

• Rents (Income Recovery) 

• Switchboard 

• Tenancy (Estates) 

• Waste 

2.11 In addition to handling all calls for these service areas, the customer service team 

also respond to emails and support residents face to face, who come into our 

Bourne and Grantham offices.  The different types and volume of customer 

contact are shown below for week commencing 24 October 2022: 

  

Contact Type Contact Volume 

Calls handled 1,797 

Face to Face – St Peters Hill 83 

Face to Face – Bourne (inc library) 508 

Emails – Customer Service 280 

Emails – Housing evidence 167 

Emails – Green Waste 21 

Housing Processing 5 

Housing Register applications 35 

Total customer contacts 2896 

 

 

 

Performance Clinics with service areas 

 

2.12 Since 5 October 2022, the Head of Service and Customer Service Co-Ordinator 

have undertaken performance clinic meetings with all agent queue areas (as 

detailed in paragraphs 2.3 to 2.6). 

 

2.13 The performance clinics have been positive, with the following outcomes: 

 

• The Customer Service Team are unable to understand the pressures teams are 

facing – predominantly reduced staffing – minimal FTE within teams and 

vacancies.  It is clear absences (planned leave and sickness) do have an impact 

on call handling. 

• The weekly performance information has been updated to include: 

o Average speed of answer 

o Average handling time 

o FTE required (by handling time) 

105



• This information will continue to be monitored and analysis undertaken with 

regards to tracking call handling % against FTE available.  We will then be in a 

position to determine what additional FTE would be required, should the number 

of calls handled need to be increased. 

• The Customer Service Team have a platform to be able to advise of upcoming 

changes – most prevalent currently is the customer service move to the Arts 

Centre.   

• Service areas have been able to advise of pressures experienced in the previous 

week and explain these, along with clarification as to whether these are one off, 

or likely to be ongoing.  Discussions have taken place as to: 

o Ongoing pressures: Service Team to advise how the pressures will be 

addressed – such as review of staffing, increased staffing, change to 

working practices etc 

o Ad hoc pressure: Service Team to advise if this is expected in coming 

weeks/months i.e. mail out created surge in customer contact, annual 

leave etc 

• Service areas understand the importance of advising customer service of peaks 

in customer contact – positive conversations have resulted in all teams having 

a mutual understanding of the impacts 

• Meetings have been arranged with service areas and the Customer Service 

Manager – to have a walk around of the offices and to get an understanding of 

what the team do.   

 

Forward action plan 

 

2.14 There are a number of forward actions associated with this area of work and as a 

result, a forward action plan has been developed. 

 

2.15 The action plan is managed by the Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer 

Service and the Customer Service Manager.  The action plan forms the basis of 

all current and future Customer Service improvements, to achieve improved 

performance and ensure positive changes are sustained by all service areas. 

 

2.16 The key actions are: 

 

• Call handling reporting for all extension numbers for transparency across the 

organisation 

• Telephony Solutions Roadmap - to clearly show the direction of travel to 

improve call handling across the Council and for all calls received into the 

Council to be monitored, either direct or to extension numbers   

• Virtual Operator Service - Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service, 

along with Customer Service Manager to work on invest to save bid and 

submit 

106



• To consider a review of the different levels of customer service support 

available for all other service areas (where it is not already in place) and for 

options to be put forward for centralisation of call handling 

• Service Standards to be developed and adopted by all customer facing teams 

• Service Level Agreement (SLA) to be in place for all customer facing teams - 

to be published internally and externally for customer transparency and 

performance to be measured against SLA 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 These are set out in the report. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 All options for improvement are included within the action plan 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 At the meeting of this Committee on 27 September 2022, an action was requested 

for the Committee to receive recent data on the calls handled within the Customer 

Service telephony system. 

 

6. Background Papers 
 

6.1 Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee on 27 September 2022 (Action 1 – That the Committee receive call 

data as requested at the 22 November meeting).  The report can be accessed 

here: Printed minutes 27th-Sep-2022 14.00 Finance Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview .pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

 

 

 

107

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g4316/Printed%20minutes%2027th-Sep-2022%2014.00%20Finance%20Economic%20Development%20and%20Corporate%20Services%20Overview%20.pdf?T=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g4316/Printed%20minutes%2027th-Sep-2022%2014.00%20Finance%20Economic%20Development%20and%20Corporate%20Services%20Overview%20.pdf?T=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  
 
 

22nd November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Robert Reid, 
Cabinet Member for Housing & 
Property  
  

 

 

Update on Changing Places Toilet Facilities 

Project   
 

Report Author 

Gyles Teasdale – Senior Assets Officer  

  g.teasdale@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide the Committee an update regarding the Changing Places Toilets facilities 

project across the district. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Notes the update regarding the Changing Places Toilets facilities project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109

Agenda Item 12

mailto:g.teasdale@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Healthy and strong communities 

 

Which wards are impacted? Bourne East, Grantham Priory, Grantham 
Earlesfield, Stamford St Leonards  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Based on the feasibility exercise undertaken the project will require £220,405 to 

complete the works at all four identified locations. SKDC currently has the 

following funding allocated: 

 

Government grant funding:  £160,000 

SK Budget 22/23:             £50,000 (includes £25k carry forward from 21/22 

budget) 

SK Budget 23/24:                £25,000 

Total:                                  £235,000 

1.2 This leaves an unallocated budget of £15k to respond to any market variations or 

unforeseen issues. 

 

1.3 Once works are completed, advice from the Changing Places support team has 

confirmed an expected increase in the annual running costs associated with the 

maintenance and servicing of any lifting and specialist equipment. This is 

anticipated to be in the region of an additional amount of £1,000 per annum per 

location.   

Richard Wyles, Chief Financial Officer  

 

 

110



 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.4 The project funding is awarded by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities, and SKDC must provide monthly updates upon progress to retain 

grant funding. 

1.5 No works contract is yet in place, but this will be reviewed on a monthly basis, 

there are no current legal implications.  

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.6 Risks identified include not being able to bring the project in within the required 

timescale due to having multiple locations and initial design works showing the 

selected options as being economically non-viable, relative to available budget. 

 

1.7 Construction risks will be reviewed monthly as part of the project and mitigation 

identified where possible.  

 

 

Health and Safety 

 

1.8 Not applicable at this stage.  

 

2. Background to the Report 

 

2.1 In July 2021 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
announced the opening for Expressions of Interest bids for a share of a £30M pot 
to provide Changing Places toilets in existing, publicly accessible buildings. 

2.2 The funding itself had been announced some months previously and consultation 
with relevant groups across the district was carried out to determine the preferred 
locations of the people who would use a Changing Places facility and their carers. 

2.3 Changing Places toilets are larger accessible toileting facilities for severely disabled 
people, with equipment such as hoists, curtains, adult-sized changing benches and 
space for carers.  

2.4 In March 2022 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
informed the Council that its bid had been successful and that it had been 
awarded the maximum £160,000. This was reported at Cabinet on 29 March 2022 
(http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g4155/Printed%20minutes%2
029th-Mar-2022%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=1) 

2.5 The funding is awarded to cover a two-year period for completion of the project. 

2.6 Preliminary survey work later determined that extensive structural changes would 
be required to locate a Changing Places Facility at Bourne Community Access Point 

111

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g4155/Printed%20minutes%2029th-Mar-2022%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g4155/Printed%20minutes%2029th-Mar-2022%2014.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=1


and Bourne Town Council offered the alternative location of South Street public 
toilets. 

2.7 One location in Grantham was also reviewed to allow for increased access and to 
meet the requirements and suggestions from feedback of local users.   

2.8 The funder agreed to the Council’s request to amend two of its original locations so 
the four sites are now: 

• South Street public toilets, Bourne (In partnership with Bourne Town Council) 

• Abbey Gardens public toilets, Grantham 

• Meres Leisure Centre, Grantham (in partnership with LeisureSK Ltd) 

• The Shack, Recreation Ground, Stamford (in partnership with Stamford Town 

Council) 

2.9 Feasibility works have been undertaken on each of the four sites by SKDC’s 
consultant building survey Banks Long & Co. which provided initial scheme designs 
and budgetary costings for each of the sites.  

2.10 Initial scheme designs have been provided to the Changing Places support team to 
review the proposals and provide feedback on the designs prior to procurement of 
the works.  

2.11 From review of the four schemes, initial designs for the Meres Leisure Centre, 
Grantham and the South Street toilets, Bourne have been agreed and we are now 
looking to progress these two projects in 2022/23 financial year for with contractors 
are currently being engaged with via the Changing Places support teams approved 
contractor list. 

2.12 From the review of the designs in relation to Abbey Gardens Toilets, Grantham and 
The Shack, Stamford, specific configuration issues have been identified and this will 
require further investigation in order for the sites to be brought forward in the 
2023/24 financial year. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 This report is to provide Members with an update on progress and provide 

assurance that there are substantial governance arrangements in place.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 None – funding is availability is for Changing Places toilet facilities specifically. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To provide an update, there are no recommendations for the Committee.  

 

 

 

 

112



6. Consultation 

 
6.1 Consultation was carried out with disabled groups (physical, learning and multiple 

disabilities), carers groups, sports and leisure groups for the disabled, older 

persons care organisations, community groups and town councils. Locations have 

been amended to meet the needs of the individuals for whom these facilities will 

be provided following feedback received. 

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Committee Changing 

Places Report - 27th June 2022.  

 

moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=4263&Ve

r=4 

 

 

 

113

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=4263&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=664&MId=4263&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme 2022-23 

 
 

Committee Membership: 9 

Chairman: Councillor Helen Crawford 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Ben Green 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
CORPORATE 

PRIORITY 

21 February 2023 

Grantham 
Future High 
Streets Fund 

Lead Officer: Alex Ward 
(Programme Manager) 

An update on the progress 
of the Future High Streets 
Fund projects in Grantham.  

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Quarter 3 
Budget 
Monitoring  

Lead Officer: Richard Wyles 
(Chief Finance Officer) 

Update to Committee Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

High Performing 
Council 

 
Housing Stock 
Condition 
Update 

Lead Officer: Andrew Cotton 
(Director of Housing) 

Update to Committee Agreed at September 
Committee meeting 

High Performing 
Council 

Section 106 
Monitoring 
Report 

Lead Officer: Emma Whittaker 
Assistant Director for Planning) 

To update the Committee on 
the Council’s Section 106 
activity. 

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

 

 

 

 
Unscheduled items 

Report title Issue Originated Corporate Priority 
 

The Committee’s Remit 
 

The remit of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet 
Members to assist with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 

115

A
genda Item

 13



 
 

 

• Budget monitoring 

• Budget setting 

• Business rate relief 

• Business transformation 

• Car parks, bus stations and town centre infrastructure  

• Charitable rate relief 

• Council-owned property, assets and maintenance (non-council house) 

• Customer access strategy 

• Data protection reporting 

• Economic development 

• Fees and charges 

• Large-scale development projects 

• Medium term financial planning and national funding proposals 

• Performance reporting 

• Review of outturn 

• Shop front designs and funding 

• Street furniture 

• Town centre developments and partnerships 
 

116


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2022
	5 Updates from previous meeting
	7 Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/24
	Appendix 1 - Lincolnshire County Council consultation response
	Appendix 2 - Police and Crime Commissioner consultation response

	8 Progress Update on the new South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy 2023 - 2028
	Appendix A - Draft South Kesteven Economic Development Strategy 2023-2028

	9 Finance Update Report: April to October 2022
	Appendix A - 2022-23  General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis
	Appendix B - 2022-23  General Fund Reserves Statement
	Appendix C - 2022-23  HRA Revenue Summary
	Appendix D - 2022-23  HRA Reserves Statement
	Appendix E - 2022-23 Finance Risk Register

	10 Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022-23 Mid Year Report
	Appendix 1 - Mid-Year KPI Report 2022-23

	11 Telephony System Calls Handling Performance
	12 Update on Changing Places Toilet Facilities Project
	13 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

